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Alcan Aluminium Limited, a Canadian corporarion, is the parent company of an
international group involved in all aspects of the aluminum industry. Through sub-
sidiaries and related companies around the world, the activities of the Alcan Group
include bauxite mining, alumina refining, power generation, aluminum smelting,
manufacturing and recycling as well as tesearch and technology. Approximarely
33,000 people are directly employed by the Company, with chousands more
employed in its related companies.

In the 96 years since it was established, Alcan has developed a unique combination
of competitive strengths, with owned hydroelectricity in Canada, proprietary process
technology and internacional presence. With operations and sales offices in more
rhan 30 counrries, the Alcan Group is one of the most international aluminum com-
panies as well as the largest producer of flac-rolled aluminum products. The word
ALCAN and the Alcan symbol ate registered trademarks in more than 100 countries
and are synonymous with aluminum the world over.

The Alcan Group is a multiculeural and multilingual enterprise reflecting the dif-
tering corporate and social characteristics of the many countries in which it operates.
Wichin a universal framework of policies and objectives, individual subsidiaries
conduct their operations with a large measure of autonomy.

Alcan Aluminium Limired has approximately 20,700 registered holders of its com-
mon shares and 1,200 tegistered holders of its preference shares. While discribuced
internationally, the Company’s shares are mostly held in North America.
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The Alcan Group Worldwide
ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meering of the holdess of common
shares of Alcan Aluminium Limired will be held
on Thursday, April 23, 1998, The mecting will
rake place at 13:00 a.m. in the Ballroom of the
Marriott Chareau Champlain. 1 Place du Canada,
Monrreal, Quebec, Canada.



I lighlights T Settvs o pn g g ST
. B ' PLoET e

of the
Year

Alcan Aluminium Limited

1997 1996 1995
Financial Data
Gn miblivis of USS, except por conpmon share amaunts)
Sales and operating revenucs 7,777 7,614 9,287
Net income before extraordinary item 468 410 543
Ner incomg 485 410 263
Return (%} on average common shareholders’ cquiry 10 9 1
Total assets {at year-end) 9,466 9,325 9,736
Capiral expendirures 641 482 441
Ratio of borrowings ro equity (at year-end) 23:77 23:77 29:71
Per common share (70 [758)
Net income before extraordinary irem 2.02 1.74 2.30
Ner income 2.09 1.74 1.06
Cash from operating activities 3.17 4.34 4.63
Dividends 0.60 0.60 0.45
Common sharcholders’ equity (ar year-end) 21.43 20,57 19.84
Operating Data
{in thousands of 1anncs)
Fabricated produces shipments™ 1,970 1,797 1,958
Ingot products shipments™* 858 810 401
Primary aluminum production 1,429 1,407 1,278
Secondary/recycled aluminum production 670 639 523
Average Three-Month LME Price
(m [J"S:t-/.’f))ih’(') 1,620 1,536 1!830
* Before extravrdinary frem.
" Includes products fabricazed frem eustomer-iwned mcial.
" Ineludes primary and secondary fngot and scrap.
Net Income (Loss)" and Fabricated Products
Average Three-Month LME Price Shipments
i
Us§/t (Truggs Kt
1,900 1,630 750 2,300
7,952 1,958 1,970
I 620 | vy (S
1,650 158 | 590 1651 1,757 R 7,786 1,800
1,636
— L 7,29 I
7,400 255 1,200
96
1 | |
1,150 0 600
(104)

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997

Ner tncome improved in 1997 to reflect
higher volumes, although fabricated producis
prices were lptoer.

*Before extraordinary item

1993 1994 1995 1996

1997

Fabricated products velumes grew 10% ro reack
sheir highest-cver fevel in 1997, Wigh carlier

years adfusted for acquisitions and divestmenss,

comipound annual g‘row:h since 1993 was 11 %.

Fabricated products  ~=—mmm
shipments

Fabricated products ———mmy
hipments adjusted
for avquisitions and

‘divestments



Message

to

Shareholders

Our
SthalEsie = |
Priorities @

.]acques Bougie (left),
President and Chief

Executive Officer, and
*  Dr. John R. Evans,

» Continue implementation of Full Business S i e
| POtential with the target of increasing after-tax

re'tUrnS by $300 million and earning our cost
of capital.

e Strengthen the position of aluminum in the

marketplace and ensure its future as the material
of choice.

“e Aggressively seek out opportunities to maximize
shareholder value.



Message 1o Shareholders

¢ can take great ptide in what Alcan accomplished during 1997. Ner income

for the year was US$485 million and we achieved a 10% increase in overall
shipments of fabricated products, which translates into increased marker share.
Particularly noteworthy were our resules in Europe, where we succeeded in boost-
ing shipments by 16% — significandy above the growth in regional demand —
while holding fabricating costs to levels virtually unchanged from the previous
year. Perhaps most importantly from a

shareholder’s standpoint, we also made one -t h | rd of our
considerable headway during 1997 in

rerms of improving Alcan’s underlying fU “ b us I Ness p otent i d l
profirabilicy target attained

AN EVENTFUL YEAR FOR THE INDUSTRY

Nineteen ninety-seven was an evencful year for the industry with market funda-
mentals showing steady improvement until the onset of economic difficulties
in Asia late in the year, Western World aluminum consumption climbed 5.4%,
led by steadily increasing demand from the transporeation industry. Gains were
recorded in all major market sectors — including can stock, where Alcan has

a leading position. In the U.S., manufacturers of aluminum beverage cans
surpassed the 100-billion-can milestone for the first time.

DELIVERING ON ALCAN'S STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

You may recall the three strategic priorities Alcan identitied for 1997: imple-
menting our “Full Business Potential” program; strengthening the position of
aluminum in the marketplace; and maximizing shareholder value. We are pleased
to report that excellent progress has been made in each of these areas.

In terms of full business potential, we have attained one-third of our targeted
$300 million, after tax, in productivity improvements. To date, these improve-
ments have come primarily in the areas of raw materials and fabricated products
in Europe and North America. This three-year program is proceeding on plan as
1998 unfolds, with further significant improvement anticipated.



Message 1o Shareholders

Such progress norwithstanding, Alcan still is not carning its cost of capital.
While we are confident that the achievement of full business potential will get
us to that point, we have introduced Economic Value Added (EVA®) as a rool
that will support decision-making and enable us to measure our effectiveness in
terms of creating increased shareholder value. Here, too, we are determined to

dCliVCl' on our commirment.

With regard ro promoring aluminum

SRR fU nd ame ntal as the material of choice, Alcan has been

characteristics of a l um i num active on several fronts. For insrance,
we have forged parenerships with key

make it S€COoN d to none customers thar will lead to further
increases in the use of aluminum by
important global industries. And we have taken a lead role within our own
industry as an advocate of intensified recycling programs and other initiatives
thar will enable us to capitalize on the metal’s inherently superior properties.
Such endeavours have taken on added significance, given the heightened public
awareness of environment and energy-related issues in the wake of last fall’s

Kyoto, Japan, environmental conference.

NOTEWORTHY ACHIEVEMENTS
Other noteworthy developments during 1997 include:

* Settlement of a long-standing dispute with the government of British Columbia
(B.C.) over the Kemano Completion Project, effectively purtting B.C. back on
Alcan’s investment map;

* Agreement regarding supply of low-cost bauxite through the development of
our Ely resetves in Australia;

* Solid progress on the major expansion of our Pindamonhangaba, Brazil,
fabricating facilities, the success of which entails close cooperation between
Alcan operations in North and South America; and

* The signing of a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with China National
Non-Fetrous Metals Industry Corporation ro complete a detailed feasibility
study for a proposed aluminum smelrer and dedicated power-generating station
project in China. This MOU was signed with the full support of China’s State
Planning Commission.



Message to Sharehclders

Subsequent to the year’s end, we announced our decision to proceed with devel-
opment of a new 375,000-tonne smelter at Alma, Quebec. Preliminary planning
for this very sizeable US$1.6-billion undertaking was completed during 1997.
Environmental clearance for the project has been obtained from the government
of Quebec, and we also have reached agreement with Hydro-Québec on the
terms of a long-term contract for the supply of electrical energy. A key
consideration for this project is timing; that

is, to ensure that the additional capacicy will L p rid @ inour
come on stteam during a period of expand- .
ing world aluminum markets. Work at the co lle ctive

site will get under way in early March of ac h i evemen tS

this year, with the first aluminum production
expected in the fall of 2000.

SUCCESS BREEDS CONFIDENCE AND ENTHUSIASM

The high level of activity evident throughout Alcan’s operations is marched by
a high level of confidence and enthusiasm discernable among Alcan personnel
— and with good reason. QOur successful initiatives in critical areas such as
cost reduction, strategic focus and, most recently, full business potential have
clearly demonstrated thar this organization can achieve what needs to be done
to enhance Alcan’s status as a global industry leader. Faced with significant
challenges — both internal and external — we have developed appropriate
action plans and have executed them successfully. Having significantly improved
the internal environment — those factors over which we exercise direct control
—- we are intent on sustaining the positive momentum by addressing some
significant external issues.

A CONSISTENT STRATEGY IS KEY
Consistency is the watchword for 1998. We intend to adhere to our successful
approach by continuing to focus on those three key strategic priorities:

* Continuing implementation of full business potential;
g 1mp p

* Maintaining our proactive role in promoting aluminum as the material
of choice, and

* Aggressively seeking out further opportunities to maximize shareholder value.
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PURSUING FULLEMPLOYEE POTENTIAL
The success of Alcan’s full business potential program clearly is dependent upon

us also achieving “full employee potential”.

Accordingly, the Company has underraken a number of other imporrant iniria-
tives designed to ensure that Alcan is able to develop and retain the best people
in the industry, while providing them wirh a safe, healthy, stimulating and

rewarding work environment. These initiatives include:

* A new thrust in employee develop-

... Our Ultimate goal: ment, with the introduction

. _ of training techniques thar focus
maximizing A

on maximizing learning and are

shareholder value closely aligned with achievernent

of Alcan’s business objectives;

* A Code of Conduct that reiterates the Company’s expectations regarding a wide

range of ethical issues, and

* A new measurement system to ensure global consistency in tracking health

and safety performance.

ASSUMING ENVIRONMENTAL LEADERSHIP

In keeping with our efforts to make certain that Alcan enjoys a reputation second
to none, we revised our corporate Environmental Policy, which commits us —
on the record — 1o assuming industry leadership in this field.

Further details on many of these initiatives can be found in the Corporate Social
Responsibility section of this report.

YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE

We should also note that Alcan has in place a Year 2000 compliance action plan.
A program is well under way to examine and resolve Year 2000 issues as they affect
the Company, thus permitting an orderly transition through the year 2000.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

As stated ar the outser, 1997 was an eventful — and challenging — year. We are
grateful for the guidance provided by our fellow directors. And, on behalf of the
entire Board, we would like to thank Alcan employees for their exceptional effort
and dedication — knowing that they share our pride in the collective achieve-
ments of 1997. There’s no doubrt that, working as partners, we can continue to
deliver excellent resules in 1998 and beyond.

LOOKING AHEAD

Industry fundamentals remained sound as the year ended, despite an element
of uncertainty stemming from the economic upsert in Asia. With invenrories
reduced by some 300,000 tonnes from 1996 levels, the marker was pretty much
in balance from a supply-demand perspective and activity continued to be brisk
in Norch America and Europe. We are cautiously optuimistic regarding the
outlook for 1998 and anricipate furrher volume growth in fabricated products,
unless the impacr of the Asian sicuation spills over into other major markets to

a degree not anticipated ar this tune.

be Ve O

Dr. John R. Evans Jacques Bougie
Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

February 19, 1998
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Investing
in the
Future

Investing in the future is more than expand-
ing facilities and upgrading processes. At
Alcan, we believe that a successful furure

also depends on how well we nurture the
leaders of tomorrow, We must pass on the
message that good business means respecting
people and the environment. It means
cooperation and integrity with employees,
communities, customers, suppliers, share-
holders and governments,

These are the basic principles of a special
partnership formed by Alcan and Ecole
Sainc-Pierre, in Alma, Quebec, in 1990.
With the support of the community, the
school created a micro-business where the
students are the mastercrafters. They recvcle
paper into greeting cards and collect and sell
used grocery bags and aluminum cans. This
initiarive has proven so successful thar it
has spawned similar ventures at threc other
Quebec schools. Another similar project

was launched in British Columbia, and a
regional program has received public recog-
nition in Brazil.

=== As part of the entre-

preneurship program
at Ecole Saint-Pierre
in Alma, Quebec,
kindergarten students
fabricate greeting
cards from recycled

paper made at their
paper made at their

school. In Ouro Preto,
Brazil, students bene-
fit from the value of
aluminum can col-
lecticn activities.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The collection and recycling activities enable
the studenes to make a profit, while Alcan’s
specially designed wotkbooks teach them
business management skills. They also

learn che importance of marching business
principles with environmental and social
responsibilicy.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAM
Communiry investment has long been a part
of Alcan’s corporate culture, In 1997, Alcan
placed a renewed focus on supporting activi-
ties rhat relate both to the communities in
which it operates and to the Company’s
business interests.

In Canada, for example, over CAN$5 mil-
lion was invested in communities where
Alcan has a significant presence. The invest-
ments covered programs in the areas of
occupational health and safery, education
and training. One such pledge was a five-year,
CAN$250,000 grant to Université Laval

in Quebec, in cooperation with the federal
government, to ¢ncourage the participation
of women in science and engineering pro-
grams. Investments in medical rescarch
programs and sponsorships of civic and
cultural events werce also undertaken, espe-
cially when the themes related to health or
environmental concerns.

The Company also donated 775 acres of
land to Nipissing University in Ontario to
be used for teaching, research and environ-
menrtal conservation purposes. The land is
home to wildlife such as loons and wolves
and also has archacological significance.

Alcan’s donarions and sponsorships foster
community partnerships and stimulate local
development, illustrating the Company's
commitment to the health and prosperity
of the locations in which it operates. i

Matching business
principles with envi-
ronmental and social
responsibility is
important to Alcan.
The Company donated
775 acres of land to
Nipissing University
In Ontario for teaching,
research and environ-
mental conservation
purposes.

|




Corporate Social Responsibility

10

SPECIAL PARTNERSHIPS

Of course, no community investment
would be complete without volunreer efforts,
whether it’s the Terry Fox Run for cancer
research or helping neighbours stranded by
a nacural disaster.

In 1997, torrential rains hit Kentucky and
Brazil’s Belo Horizonte region, forcing many
citizens to leave their homes. And, in carly
January 1998, an unprecedented ice storm
paralyzed southern Quebec and parts of
neighbouring provinces and states, leaving
millions of people withour electricity. In
each instance, Alcan people were involved,
providing relief, gathcring supplies or
raising funds.

In the U.S., Alcan joined an initiative of
The Aluminum Association and Habitat for
Humanirty International in building afford-
able homes for needy families. The program,
entitled Aluminum Cans Build Habitat for
Humanity Homes, is based on the collection
and recycling of aluminum cans to help
finance construction.

Assisting young people with career choices
continues to distinguish Alcan. In Switzerland,
Alcan Rorschach AG offers work apprentice-
ships to young pcople who have complered
their compulsory schooling. With Alcan per-
sonnel acting as mentors, the program sponsors
27 apprentices in eight differcnt functions.
Through a similar program in Canada, Career
FEdge, Alcan contributed CAN$800,000 and
provided 47 apprenticeships.

ENVIRONMENT

Alcan revitalized its Environmental Policy
with a 1997 revision thar focuses on the
contribution of every employee in order
to achieve a leadership position within
our industry.

An Environmental Management System
{EMS) has now been initiated in each
and every Alcan facility. This global
approach to environmental management
focuses on processes, smoothing the way
to earn new environmental certification
such as ISO 14001 from the International
Organization of Standardization.

The Company has taken a lead role in seve-
ral industry initiatives to promote the image
of aluminum in both North America and
Europe. And, Alcan helped spearhead a joint
Life-Cycle Invenrory (LCI) of a generic
Norch American family-size vehicle.

An LCI is used to quantify the environ-
mental performance of a product or process
over its life cycle, including raw material
extraction, production, use, and end-of-life
disposal. The study was under the auspices
of the U.S. Automotive Materials Partnership,
a coalition of the “big three” U.S. car manu-
facturers and the aluminum, plastic and
steel industrics.

Aluminum has many inherent qualities
such as its recyclability, energy efficiency,
strength-to-weight ratio, barrier ability,
and thermal and clectrical conductivity.
All of these contribute to aluminum being
specified as a material of choice, not only
in the automotive scctor, but also in other
industries around the globe.



HEALTH AND SAFETY
The elimination of work-related injury and
illness is the ultimate objective ar all Alcan

locations. In 1997, the traditional indices of

safety performance exhibited a positive
trend. Many Alcan faciliries reported record
safety performances. Of special significance
was the Laterri¢re smelrer, which operated
a full year withour a lost-time accident —
an accomplishment all but unheard of a few
years ago for a major aluminum smelter.

A new health and safery recordkecping
system was implemented at che end of 1997.
Known as AIRS Plus (Alcan Injury and
Illness Recordkeeping System), it takes a
global approach, enabling the organization
to gather more consistent data and compare
improvements between locations. With
AIRS Plus, Alcan looks at health and safery
from the total health perspecrive, not just
at injuries duc 1o accidents.

The Company encourages and values the
involvement of all cmployees in the con-
rinual improvement of occupational healrh
and saferv.

CODE OF CONDUCT

When Alcan published Alcan, fts Purpose,
Objectives and Policies some 20 years ago,

it was a demonstration of industry leadership
and a commirment to social responsibiliry.
In 1997, the Company released a companion
document — the Code of Condnect.

The “Code” outlines Alcan’s expectations
on ethical issues, ranging from employee
behaviour in the workplace to business
pracrices with suppliers and customers,

Tn an extensive implementation, the Code
of Conduct was introduced to employees
Uj LASAERECE WYY LUy ulcy Lw Clll})luycch

around the globe.

Corporale Social Responsibility

In a similar vein in Canada, Alcan volun-
tarily agreed to a code of international
business practices, dealing with human
righes, worker health and safery, communiry
needs, and environmental responsibilicy.
It also includes a commitment to conduct
business with integrity.

PEOPLE DRIVE SUCCESS

People make the difference at Alcan. In the
past year, we saw renewed emnphasis on human
resources development, linking training and
cducation directly to the Company’s strate-
gic goals. Wherher it was technical training
or management development, the renewed
vigour in rraining and cducation was highly
visible throughout the year.

Action-learning and other advanced rraining
techniques were incorporated in programs
to make them more relevane and 1o maximize
learning. This was especially apparent in the
new Corporate Management Development
Program where participants work in global
teams on strategic issues and undergo indi-
vidual developmenr assessments.

Corporate training programs include sessions
on Alcan’s business environment and srrategy,
internarional competitiveness, leadership
and management competencies for success.

The goal of all Alcan education programs
is to build a partnership with each and
every employee. By investing in its people,
the Company reinforces its strengths.
When this collective encrgy is combined
with knowledge and derermination, true
partnerships arc formed and the scamless
organization becomes a reality.

In his third year

of apprenticeship

at Alcan Rorschach
in Switzerland,
Yincenzo Nicosiano
learns about roto-
gravure printing from
his trainer Willi Bitrer.
Currently 27 young
people, having com-
pleted their compul-
sory schooling, are
getting hands-on
experience from

a choice of eight
different functions.

V




The Alcan Group’s’

Businesses

at a Glance

W Bauxite Mining/Reserves Alcan also has sales/marketing offices,
m Alumina Refining research and technology facilities or
: : other activities in Austria, Belgium,
O Specialty Chemicals Bermuda, Denmark, Finland, Hungary,
& Primary Aluminum Smelting Korea, Poland, Portugal, Russia,
a Super Purity Aluminum Refining Sweden and The Netherlands.
S Recycling/Secondary Smelting/
Used Beverage Can (UBC) Recovery
© Sheet and/or Foil Rolling

@ Other Fabricating

United asZoe
States

Canada mMOaC 0@

Jamaica
Brazii WpHpagoe®
Norway
Ireland TA a : s “-*_-;H_\_//'——Germany ©®
United P w—f——\\“‘“’”‘, S land @
nite witzerlan
Kingdom \
France N Italy S60
Spain Japan BOacQ 0@
Guinea China ®
Ghana Thailand SOoe
Malaysia ©e
India WEOOaaGOo® Australia wE

* includes subsidiaries. related companies and divisions.
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The Alcan Group's Businesses at a Glance

1997 Highlights

Customers
CONTAINERS AND BUILDING AND
and Markets PACKAGING TRANSPORTATION ELECTRICAL CONSTRUCTION OTHER MARKETS

= Total fabricated and non-
aluminum sales.

= $2.5 billion = $483 million = $579 million = $952 million = $1.3 billion
in sales. in sales. in sales. in sales. in sales.
= 43% of total =~ 8% of total = 10% of total = 17% of total — 22% of total
sales. sales. sales. sales. sales.
Sdleb. Sdigs. Sdled, Sdies. Sdied.
Fabricated
ot OTHER FABRICATED TOTAL FABRICATED
PrOdUCtS © ROLLED PRODUCTS @® PRODUCTS PRODUCTS

= Qver 60 manufacturing plants
in 11 countries. £

- 4.

= $3.9 billion (1,476 kt) in sales.”™ = $1.2 billion (218 kt) in sales. = $5.1 billion in sales. ™!

= Fabricated 276 kt of customer- = 2 Mt of aluminum fabricated
owned metal. in Alcan facilities.
Metal
= PURCHASED INGOT SECONDARY/
Supply AND FABRICATED PRODUCTS a PRIMARY PRODUCTION T RECYCLED ALUMINUM
{Smielting and Power)

= 13 smelters in 4 countries with
1.6 Mt of annual capacity.

= 7 recycling plants in 4 countries
with 692 kt of annual capacity.

= 730 kt of primary ingot, 2 kt of = 1.4 Mt produced. = 670 kt produced.

secondary ingot and 40 kt of = $1.2 billion (651 kt) in — 482 kt of scrap purchased.
fabricated products purchased. ingot sales.™ = $135 million (82 kt) in
ingot sales.
= $164 million (115 kt) in
scrap sales.
Alumina
and Chemicals W BAUXITE MINING ¥l ALUMINA REFINING O SPECIALTY CHEMICALS

(Reiw Muterials and Chemicals)

= 11 bauxite mines/reserves
in 6 countries with 400 Mt
of demonstrated reserves
(in subsidiaries’ and related
companies).

= 12 alumina plants in 9 countries ; e e ;
P — 11.5 Mt used (including related = 5.0 Mt produced (in subsid- =~ $174 million in sales.

with 5.1 Mt of annual capacity 5 S5y X
{in subsidiaries" and related companies). o faries' and refated companies).
companies). = %47 million in bauxite third- = $311 million in alumina third-
party sales. party sales.
= 8 specialty chemicals plants in
4 countries (including related
comparnies).
In addision to the sales of bauxite, " includes joint ventures, praporiionately cousolidased.

alumina and specialty chemicals indi-

> . " excluding refated companies.
cased abave, Alcar’s nan-aluminur

4 Gt " aleo :‘rr('it.'(&=y£pr;:z‘f.la.v«.-a’ ingat.
products aeconnt for $224 millien in sales. T excluding fabrication of customer-awned metal.

13



Customers
and Markets

= Total fabricated and non-
aluminum sales.

= The decline in revenues in
1996 was due to business
divestments and lower
prices.

P [Fabricated

froducts

™ The decline in fabricated
preducts revenues and
shipments from 1995
to 1996 is largely attrib-
utable to the disposal af
a number af downstream
businesses.

g Metal

Supply

{Smelting and Power)

=~ The decline in sales and
operating revenues and
operating income in 1996
from 1995 reflects the 16%
reduction in LME prices.

Alumina
and Chemicals

(Reaw Matevialk

and Chemicals)

= Because many alumina
contracts are linked with
the LME prices of alu-
minum, the decline in
aluminum prices in 1996
also affected sales and
operating revenues and
operating income for
alumina.

14

Business Sector Review’

CONTAINERS AND BUILDING AND
PACKAGING TRANSPORTATION ELECTRICAL CONSTRUCTION OTHER MARKETS
Total Sales Total Sales Toral Sales Total Sales Total Sales
(rmilligns f‘f EARY) (milligns of US35) (millians of U/SS) (milltons of USS) (millions of US$)
~ 20977 _ 557 < a1 - 1257 - 1,830
- - . §53 - 580 oy 952 - ,
& 2,558 2520 _ 457 _ 570 _ LAl 1,302
| | | i | | | I | | 1 I | | |
95 96 97 as 96 W7 25 96 97 95 96 97 93 Q6 97

FEnd uses Inelude bever-
age cans, household foil,

bottle elosures and forl
applicarions.

and ships.

THIRD-PARTY SALES
AND OPERATING REVENUES

(riblions of USS)

G983

In 1997, volumes were tip 10% bt
average prices were lower, prineipally
due to weaker European currencies.

THIRD-PARTY SALES
AND OPERATING REVENUES

{millions of USS)

— L6i2
- 133!
== 1472
l | |
95 9% 97

Both sales volume and average price
realizations increased in 1997,

THIRD-PARTY SALES
AND OPERATING REVENUES

(miltions r.f USS)
— GI§
— 529 536

[ I [
25 96 97

Sales volume was up slightly in 1997
and prices were little-changed.

* exeluding related companies.

End wses include auro-
?”-'Jfl.ﬁ‘f\ SErectires, b(‘ﬂ:}'
foil dishes and conzainers, panels and engine parts,
wheels and radiators,
laminates for packaging  afreraft structures, rail
carriages, freight cars

Eried wses include over-
head transmission

Py | [, .
cable, cable wrap, con-
demser windings, wnder-
gmrmd distribution
cable and heat sinks.

TOTAL SECTOR
OPERATING INCOME

(millions of US$)

— 346
290

Profits fram this sector more than
doubled in 1997 with increased volumes
and lower unit costs,

TOTAL SECTOR
QPERATING INCOME

(millions of USS$)

. Jof
- 359
= 519
| | |
95 26 97
Improved carnings reflect higher
metal prices,
TOTAL SECTOR
COPERATING INCOME
(millions of USS)
. 203
- 1235
_ e —
| | |
95 96 97

The improverent in profitability in the
year arose privnarily from reduced costs.

End uses include
windows and doors,
roofing and cladding.
lighting poles and
ﬁwr{n’_\’, SITECTUres
and bandrails.

End uses inchide
machiniery, appliances,
j_’t al (\Xf}]h’ ?Jgt'rj. wedar
components, synthetic
marble and aluming
chemicals.

FABRICATED
PRODUCTS SHIPMENTS

(thousands of tonnes)

1,958 1970

1797

I | I
g3 ) 927

Shipments were up 10% in 1997,
inclwding a 16% inerease in Eurape.

PRIMARY
PRODUCTION

(theusands of tonnes)
10T 1429
1.278

Continued improvements in process
cﬁ?(}}'n(m‘ resulred in increased cutpul
in 1997, Production in 1995 had been
affected by a strike in Quebec,

ALUMINA HYDRATE
PRODUCTION

{thousands of tonnes)

_ 4,727
4,336
T q200
— =
I i |
55 9% 97

Alumina bydrate production reached

its hrghest-cver level with new recards

achieved in famaica and Ireland from
EXISHNG Assets.



The Alcan Group's Businesses at a Glance

Strategic Priorities and Objectives

Alcan’s ongoing strategic priorities are to continue the implementation of our Full Business Potential program, to
maintain a proactive role in promoting aluminum as the material of choice and to aggressively seek out further
opportunities to maximize shareholder value. In so doing, Alcan will exploit its global presence, continuing to work
in close relationship with its select customers. We will focus on market growth and new market opportunities and
continue to provide excellent service and premium quality products to cur customers.

The success of Alcan's strategy is clearly dependent upon the full participation of every employee towards these
goals and the Company's ability to create a safe and healthy environment in which the full potential of each
employee can be realized.

The following are the strategic priorities and objectives by business sector aimed at maximizing shareholder value.

P Fabricated
Products

" Metal
Supply

{Smelting and Power)

P Alumina
and Chemicals

(Raw Materials
and Chemicals)

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

— Leverage Alcan's position
as the world’s largest producer
of aluminum rolled products.

— Invest in those downstream
businesses with superior returns.

STRATEGIC PRICRITIES

— Grow the power and smelting
business while remaining a low-
cost producer.

— Retain our position as the world’s
largest aluminum used beverage
can recycler.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

— Optimize Alcan’s alumina
and bauxite asset base while
substantially reducing the cost
of alumina.

~ Achieve profitable growth in
Alcan’s chemicals business.

OBJECTIVES

— To maintain a global supply position in the can
sheet and lithographic markets.

~— To develop an automotive sheet business for
the 21st century.

~— To mainfain the leading position in the South
American rolled products market.

~ To capture the value of Alcan's recent investments
in rolled products operations in Europe.

— To invest in and grow the electrical cable business.

OBJECTIVES

~ To efficiently return to full capacity as market
conditions permit.

— To achieve improved process efficiencies on existing
assets through the implementation of best operating
practices and technology applications.

~ To develop and implement low-cost expansion/growth
alternatives.

~ To ensure a cost-effective stream of recycled aluminum
to supplement our primary aluminum position.

OBJECTIVES

= To achieve best operating practices in alumina refining.

~ To secure low-cost bauxite.

— To leverage existing assets.

— To pursue opportunities that strengthen Alcan’s
alumina position.

15



Management’s
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Analysis

Aiming for
Full Business
Potential

a Mavimizing fnP
e Maximizing the

penetration of aluminum
in existing end uses

e Seizing opportunities
in emerging markets

e Reducing costs of raw
materials and processing

» Fully developing our
employees’ potential



World
Market

Review

Primary Aluminum

Alter onlva small ncrease i Western World”
demand for alominum in 1996, the carly
[art of 1997 saw a SLTONE recovery as rthe
customer destocking that had characterized
much of 1996 was reversed. Tn Norch and
South America and m Europe, industry
demand cominued 1o be strong throughout
the vear. Tn Japan, however, GP grm\'[ll
wan strong 1mche first quarter inanticipation
ol an increase in consumption tax, buc this
wis tollowed by asharp decline. As a resul,
lapanese aluminum demand grew i the
first halt but declined in the second halt of
the vear w give total year-over-vear growth
af 2%, largelv driven by higher exporrs
resulting from the weaker yen. Despite this,
and the Hnanaal crisis in Southeast Asia,
which resubted in o slowing of growrh

in demand as the vear progressed, rotal
Western World primary aluminum demand
is estimatad 1o have increased over 6% o
reach 189 million tonnes (Mr).

Primary aluminum production in the
Western World increased some 4% in 1997

to 16,1 M with capacity additions in Australia
and Niveria as well as some restares of idled

* Detised s the workd excluding the Commeniwealih
of Independer States (C1S.), Fastern Europe
aned Chiva.

== Alleft, Michel Villeneuve,
smelting operator at Grande-
Baie Works in Quebec,
prepares for an anode
change, The recent decision
1o proceed with the 375-kt/y
Alma smelter projectin
Quebedis in keeping with
Alcan's strategic priority to
grow Lhe power and smelting
business, building on its

low-cost position,

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

capacity, primarily in Europe. At the end

of the vear, about 730 thousand tonnes (ko)
of capacity remained idle. representing 4.4%
of total capacity. Expuansions planned for
1998 are expecred to add some 370 ko per
vear (kt/y) 1o capacity by the cud of the vear.

Expores of primary aluminum [rom the

C LS. ro the West remained at a similar
Jevel to 1996 ar 2.6 Mo with litde evidence
of a revival in domestic demand. Chinese
primary production is estimared to have
increased 8% i 1997, resuliing in a reduction
in China’s net imports from the previous
vear's level of 250 ke wo an estimated 50 ki,

Western World Primary

Aluminum Supply and Demand .
21 o
Pradhection plis
imports from .15,
b Shipiiens
19 : ) -
Ceasanally adiusted)
Dewnatnd cased from
717 l’/i(' /Jfg]i /l‘l'{‘/\ “arf
e f/(:'{f};‘;/,’i.’(ﬁ f([ e
year, theit rebounided
L int the fourth quarier.
5 \u/r/a/\; tneredsed
.‘"'('r[(ﬂl{‘,' FfHuH_g/mW
the year.
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997
Total Aluminum Inventaories
and Ingot Prices
M Ussit o
7 | 2,500
fatal inventories
APAL, EME)
—y T LAME three-ineingh
/H'I('."\
Liveararies were
5 Ts00  decliniing for most
of the year with prices
trading in a narrew
— . range befere coming
3 1,000 ! '
wiacler pressure towerds
Vear-cied, as the decline
o1 Asias demand

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 s [el.

"Inrernationa Prioary
Aluminue Instirute

17
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1997 Western

World Aluminum
Consumption by
End-Use Market

{255 mitliva torings)

B

26%

26%

18

Electrical
Containers

and packaging
Building and

CONSEPUCTIOn

Transporsation

Other

Total inventories in the hands of primary
aluminum producers and in London Metal
Exchange (LME) warehouses declined over
the year by 300 ke to a level of 3.8 M, equi-
valent to about 10.1 weeks of consumption.

[ngor prices increased during the first part
of the year tising to a peak three-month
LME price of $1,755 per tonne (/t} in the
thitd quarter, to be followed by a decline 1o
$1,558/t by year-end, close to the years low
point. The average price for the year was
$1,620/1, an increase of $84/t over 1996 but
well below the average for 1995 of $1,830/1.

Western World Censumplion Versus Alcan Sales
It is estimated that total Western World alu-
minum consumption in 1997 was 25.5 M,
three-quarters of which was supplied from
primarty sources and the remainder from
'recycied meral. This represents an estimared
increase of 5.4% over 19906,

Alcan’s toral shipments increased some
8.5% ro 2.8 Mu with ingot shipments up
(6% and a near 10% increase in shipments
of fabricated products. Lower average prices
for fabricated products, resulting from the
translation of weaker European currencies,
and producr mix changes, however, meant
that revenues increased only 2% over the

1996 level.

The transportation marker consolidated its
position as the largest market for aluminum
with a 7.4% increasc to 6.8 Mt. This resulred
from strong production of light vehicles,
up over 4% globally, and the conrinuing
increase in aluminum penecration. Alcan’s
revenues from this market increased some

6% in 1997.

The containers and packaging market
increased an estimated 3.4% to consume
4.8 Mt of aluminum. Can sheet demand
recovered from the decline seen in 1996

to return to the peak levels scen in 1995,
In the U.S., can shipmencs surpassed the
100 billion mark for the first time and very
strong growth continued ro be exhibited

in South America. Despire higher can sheet
volumes, Alcan’s revenues declined slightly
in rhis market due ro soft prices for flexible
packaging in Europe and rhe effect of weaker
European currencies when revenues are
rransiated into dollars.

Building and construction also posred a
healrhy gain, rising 3.9% to a level of 5.1 M,
with strong growth from Europe and North
America offser by a decline of over 5% in
Japan. Alcan’s consolidated revenues from
this sector were up 4,5%, primarily in
Europe and North America.

Consumption of aluminum in the electrical
market was up 6.4% in 1997, rcaching

2.2 Mt, more than reversing a small decline
in the previous year. Alcan's revenues from
this market were unchanged. Srrong growth
in North America offset the reduction that
arose from divestmenr of a business in
South America.

Other markets include machinery and
equipment, durable goods and other smaller
end-use markers. Toral aluminum consump-
tion in these markers rose some 5.6% reflect-
ing generally buoyant economic conditions.
Alcan’s sales revenues in this catcgory, which
include sales of aluminum ingot and alumina,
were unchanged. Higher alumina volumes
and flat prices werc offsct by the cffect of
the divestment of businesses in 1996,



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(millions of US$) 1997 1996 1995
Net income before
extraordinary iten 468 410 543
Extragrdinary gain (loss) 4 S s
Net income 485 410 263

Alean reported consolidared ner income for
1997 of $489 million afrer an extraordinary
gain of $17 million arising from che sale of
a partion of a contracr to supply power to
B.C. Hvdro, net of additional write-downs
of remaining Kemano Complerion Project
(KCPY assets. As pare of the setdement

of the dispute regarding the cancellation

of KCP the Company was able to sell to

a third party che right to supply power to
B.C. Hvdro under an ongoing conrract.
Dewails of the sectlement of the KCP dispute
can be found on page 33. Also included

in the 1997 income was a net afrer-rax

2ain of $6 million comprising a favourable
tax adjustment relating to prior periods of
$26 million, and a net gain on the sale of
businesses of $10 million. This was partly
otfset by a $30-million provision in respect
of conrract losses and restructuring at the
Company’s Japanese affiliace.

For 1996, consolidated net income was
3410 millior including net after-tax charges
0f §23 million relating to restructuring

and earlv retirement of debt, offset by gains
on business disposals and prior-period

1ax adjustments,

Nanagemenl!'s Discussion and Analysis

Net mncome for 1995 was $263 million after
an cxtraordinary loss of $280 mullion after
tax for the write-down of the Company’s
mvesument in KCP In addition, there was
a net adverse impact of $61 million, the
largest item being the effect of a labour strike
at the Company’s operarions in Quebec.

In 1997, the Company launched a program
of measures aimed at achieving the full
business potential of each of its operating
units. A rarger was sct to improve after-rax
profitability by $300 million over a three-year
period, beginning in 1997. By the end of
the year, the Company is approximarely
one-third of rthe way to achievement of this
goal. Improvements totalling $160 million
betore tax have been achieved. In the raw
materials scctor, gains of $40 million have
been made through cost reductions and
increased production volume. In fabricared
products, improvements totalled $120 million,
principally from higher capacity utilization,
$80 million of which arises in Furope and the
remainder in North America. The full impacr
of these achievements is noc visible in rthe
1997 results due to non-recurring costs asso-
ciated wirh the program. These include pot
relining costs at the Company’s Lynemouth
smelter in the UK. and expenses related to
information technology and systems.

Aluminum’s high
strength-to-weight
ratio, corrosion
resistance, recycla-
bility and especially.
today's all-important
energy management
are reasons why
automobile designers
are choosing alu-
minum, Alcan, with
its Aluminum Vehicle
Technology, helped
the Ford Motor
Company produce
the Project 2000 —
the lightest mid-sized

vehicle in the world
at jusl 2,000 lbs.

I
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thousands

Adjusted for business
acqiisitions and
disposals (at year-end)

Productivity
:'mj/rm:f.'f.ll in 1997,
as [0% more fab-
ricated prodicts
,\%’J;D?H:'J)H were
achieved with a
simitar number

of employees.
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Revenues

Sales and Operating Revenaes, at $§7.777 mil-
lhon, were 2% higher than in 1996 bur 16%
below the 1995 Tevel, Sales volumes were
8.5% higher than in 1996, but average price
realizations tor tabricared products were
shieply lower at $2,999/t compared o
$3,279/tin 1996 and $3.557/tin 1995.
This reflects the impact of weaker European
currencics when translared into LS. dollars
as well s changes in produce mix duc to

the sale of certain downstream businesses.

The decline compared to 1993 retleces lower

prevailing metal prices and the disposal of
businesses with higher average prices and
correspondingly higher m:nmﬁacruring Cosls.

Other income, which comprises inrercst
mcome and other non-operating gains,
amounred to $88 million 1 1997 compared
to 575 million and $100 millien in 1996
and 1995, respecrively. Other than inerest
received on surplus cash, the main items
included i this category were gains on the
disposal of downstream businesses.

Number of Employees

! losa |33

1994 1995

ik 32.9

1993 1996 1997

Costs and Expenses

Despite higher sales volumes, cost of sales
and operating expenses increased only 1.5%
in 1997 annd this followed a decline of 18%
in the previous vear. The improvement

e unit costs is due to mcreased capacity
urilization, lower European coses in dollar
terms and some change in product mix,
offset in parc by higher cost and increased
volume of purchused metal. The decline

in 1996 was due primarily to the impact of
business disposals and lower mewal purchases.

(k) 1997 1996 1995

Purchases of aluminum
Ingat products i 509 789
Serap 482 446 509
Fabricated products 40 48 67
1,25¢ 1,003 1,365

Purchases of aluminum increased in 1997
to 1,254 kt ro support increased sales.
Average prices for ngot on the LM were
SLO20/0in 1997 compared 1o $1.936/t
in 1996 and $1,830/t in 1995,

Drepreciation expensc at $436 miilion in
1997 compares to 5431 million in 1996
and $447 million in 1995, The decline in
1996 aver 1993 reflccred business disposals.

Selling, adminisrrative and general ¢xpenses
mcreased 5% in 1997, to $444 million,
following six consecurive vears of decline.
The inerease is due primarily (o expenses
totalling $46 million incurred in renewing
and updaring information rechnology
systems. These expenses are expected to
conninue at similar levels in 1998 and 1o
decline thereatoer,



Research and development expenses were
s72 million in 1997 livde changed fron:
1995 and 1996. The stable ievel of spending
aver the last three vears reflects the full
alignment of R & 1 activides wich the
technology needs of the Company's core
Businesses: principally raw materials, smcle-
ing and rollimg. Alcan continues 1o maintain
asirong eftorc i developing automornive
aluminum materials and weehinology, Addi-
tonally, there are carrently several process
aptimization iniatives auned ar assisting

in the achievemenr of tull business porential.
In 1998, research and development expen-
ditures are expected ro increase moderately.

Interest Costs

1997 1996 1995
161 125 204

103 125 206

6.9% 73%  8.2%

Alcan’s interest expense continued its declin-
ing trend in 1997, Interest expense fell by
19% in the vear to $101 mullion. From i
peak of $254 million in 1992, the Company’s
interest expense has now fallen by $153 mil-
Lion or 0%, The decline reflects Alcan's
debt reducrion program over this period and
the benefit of falling interest rates. The pre-
X IDCCrest eXPense coverage ratio continued
te improve to 7.4 times from 3.6 times In
1996 and 4.8 umes in 1995,

Wanagement's Discussion and Analvsis

Income Taxes

Income raxes of 238 million lor 1997
represent an effective tax rate of 34%,
lictle-changed from 1996, versus a composite
staturory rate of 40%. The ditference in
the rates 1s due primarily o imvestment and
other allowances, the realization of previ-

oushy unrecorded wx benefits on losses,

as well as favourable adjustments for prior
periods. In 1995 there was linde difference
berween the two rares,

Income taxes for the vears 1988 (o 1991
have been reassessed by dhe Canadian ax
authorities. Mosr of the additional raxes and
interest claimed related o transfer pricing
and are recoverable in other countries,

Amv unrecoverable amounts are covered

by existing provisions.

tquity Companies

Alcans share of the Josses of equity-accounied
companies was 533 million compared w
S1O million in 1996 and $3 million in 1995,
I'he increased losses arnse from a restruc-
turing and contract loss provision at Alcan's
45.0%-owned rehated company in Japan.
Nippon Light Meral Company, Lid. (NLM).

Aluminum’s inher-
ently unique proper-
ties, its light-weight
farmability, strength-
to-weight ralio as
well as high recycla-
bility and residual
value make it the
malterial of choice.
Alcan, the world's
largesl producer

of alunrinum rolled
products, is com-
mitted to solidifying
aluminum’s position
in end-use markets
such as lransport-
ation, and containers

and packaging.
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PRODUCT SECTOR REVIEW

The following information is reported by
major produce sector viewing each sector

on a stand-alone basis. Transactions berween
sectors are conducred on an arm’s-length
basis and reflect marker prices. Thus, profic
on all alumina produced by the Company,
whether sold to third parties or used in the
Company's smelters, is included in the raw
materials and chemicals secror, Stmilarly,
income from primary meral operarions
includes profic on metal produced by the
Company. whether sold to third parties or
used in the Company's fabricating operarions.
Income from the fabricared produces secror
represents only the fabricating profit from
rolled produces and downsiream businesses.
Addirional product sector information is pre-
sented in note 21 to the financial sratements.

Raw Materials and Chemicais Operations

(millions qf{_fSS) L 1996 1'99577
Sates and operating revermes

Third parties BAE. om0 g

Intersector 520 507 555
f)/;zm.'/'ng income 125 559 203
Shipments — thivd parties (kt)
_ Smelter-grade alwmina Loz
Alumina hydrate

production (kt) 4,727 4536 4,209

Profits for the secror rose subsrantially over
the prior year. The main conrtributing factors
were lower producrion costs and a small
increase in volume. Prices for chird-parey
sales of alumina remained at similar levels

o 1996.

Unit production costs fell significantly in
1997. The decrease was largely actributed
t0 lower raw muarterials prices for caustic
soda and purchased bauxite coupled with
cost reduction efforrs towards achievement
of the full business porential.

Bawxite

Through subsidiaries and related companies,
Alcan has approximately 400 Mt ol demon-
serated bauxite reserves, more than sufticient
to meer its needs for che nexe 30 vears,

The Company also has access o additional
resources to meet its needs bevond this period.

During 1997, significant progress was made
in Ausrralia rowards securing a low-cosr
bauxite supply for the Company’s share in
the Queensland Alumina Limited refinery
for the year 2000 and beyond. Early in 1998,
agreement was reached with Cormalco Limired
for integrated mining of Alcan’s Ely bauxite
with Comalco's reserves. This will achieve
significant economies of scale and provide
Alcan with low-cost bauxire, in addition,
mnidatives ro increase equity and expand a
mine i1 Ghana were launched.

Aluniina

Alumina hydrate producrion reached

4.7 Muin 1997, a 4% increase over 1996
and the highest level ever for the Company.
Aughinish Alumina Limited in Ireland and
Alcan Jamaica C.Umpun)’ in Jamaica achieved
record production levels. Third-party sales
rose 6% ro almost 1.7 Mro



Chemicils

Operating resules for the year were lower
than in 1996, mainly in Europe where the
strengthening of the pound sterling, particu-
larly against continental European curren-
cies. reduced profit margins, Considerable
progress has been made towards improving
Alcan’s position in the specialty aJumina
chemicals matkets and capacity expansions
have been undertaken for these higher value-
added producrs,

Primary Metal Operations

Cmilons of USS)
Sales and aperating revenues
parties Lagl . 472 . LL§l2
ecto o0l 1653 2286
589 Sy 701

o 1996 0 1995

661 592 549
S0 L00s 1193

iry production (k) 429 T A07 o, 278

Operating profits for the primary meral
sector rose in 1997 o reflect higher average
aluminum ingot prices. Profits for this sector
arise not anly from third-party sales but
alsor trom the sale of meral ac marker prices

Management's Discussion and Analysis

to the Company’s fabricating operations,
The awverage realized price on third-party
sales of primary ingot was $1,803/1 against
$1,721/tin 1996 and $2,057/t 1n 1995,

Alumina is transferred from the Company’s
raw matcrials operations to its smelters at
marker prices. Alumina prices were lirtle-
changed in 1997 from 1996 and sdill
somewhat lower than in 1995%. Alcan’s
average cost of production of primary alu-
minum (mainly in the form of extrusion
billet and sheet ingor), including alumina
at market prices, was $1,352/t in 1997 versus
$1.328/tin 1996 and $1,336/t in 1995,
The principal reason for the increase in 1997
was the cost of refurbishing the idle potline
at the Lynemounth smelrer in the Unived
Kingdom in preparation for restart when
marker conditions allow. This project will
be completed in the first half of 1998.

Primary Production

Primary metal production in 1997 was
slightly higher than the 1996 level due

to improved performance in Canada and
increased water availability at the Company’s
hydroclectric power plant in Scotland.
Producrion in 1995 had been adversely
affected by about 75 ki due to a strike at
the Company’s Quebec smelrers.

Throughout its
worktdwide operations,
Alcan is commitied to
excellence in research
and technology, raw
materials, chemicals,
casting ingot, extru-
sion billet, rolled
products and down-
stream fabricated
products. At the
Petaling Jaya plant

in Malaysia, Harun

Sonder All removes

ingots after casting.

V
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Aluminum cans

are, by far, the most
recycled beverage
container of any
kind and Alcan is
the world's largest
can recycher. Alumi-
num'’s high salvage
vilue contributes

to the success of
many fund-raising
efforts and substan-
tially covers the cosl
of community collec-
tion and recycling

programs.

24

Alcan continues 1o have approximarely
P34 kv, or 8%, of 1ts tola

rated capacity
remporarly idled. This capacine will be
restarted only when warranted by indusery
conditions. Alcan restared 22 kv/v of
capacity at its smelter i Kitimad, Brinsh
Columbia, in November 1997, This restart

was one clement of a legal agreement with

the government of Brivish Columbia o
settle the outstanding issues relared o the
governments rejection of the Kemanao
Completion Project. This 1997 B.C.-Alcan
sertdement agreement also provides for
replacement clecrricity, at ateractive prices,
ro power a potential future expansion of
the Kinimat smelier, ws well as improvements
to an existing clectricity sale agreement,
Further details are given on page 33,

In Quebec, the environmenral review and

community consultation processes relating
to the proposed 373-kt/y smelier at Alma

have been successfullv complered. In Tebruay

of this year, the Company announced its
decision to proceed with the project, Con-
struction will commence i carly March of
1998, and the [rse metal will be produced
in the fall of 2000.

A MW TWO-VERT POWCT CONLIACT Was Nego-
viated for the Arav smelrer i Brazil, Also
in Brasil, ﬂ(mding emporarily affected pro-
duction ar the Ouro Prero simelrer, in the
U.S.. Alcan has made progress in s efforts
to find an acceprable solution w the cco-
nomic problems of the power supplier wo the
Selree. Kentucky, smelrers Av Lynemourh
n the UKL 2 ovo-vear capital program to
upgrade and returbish the closed potline

s nearing completion.
£

[n Ocrobern, Alcan announced the formation
of a teum w conduct a feasibiline study on

a proposed 225-ki/v expansion of s Kitima
simelier in norchern Bricsh Columbia, A month
later. a memorandum of understanding was
signed with the China Narional Non-Ferrous
Metaly Industry Corporation for a feasibilicy
study relared o the potennial consrruction
of wnaluminum smelier and power starion
in Shanxi province, China. The results of
borh of these feasibiliny studies are expecied
in the next 13 to 18 months.

Secondary Production

In addirion o its used beverage can recvcling
operations, which are included in the fabri-
cared products sector. Alcan reeveles other
forms of aluminum scrap ac lour facilities
i lwaly, Thailand, the UK. and the ULS. chat
have a rotal capacity of 192 ki/v. Thivd-parey
sales. primarily of foundry allovs for the
auromotive industry, were 82 krin 1997
compared to 119 krin 1996 and 124 krin
1999, The decline in 1997 arises {rom the
sale, late in 1996, of the Company's facility at
Guelph, Ontario. These secondary smelrers
also produce rolling ingor for use in the
Company’s own tabricating operations,



Fabricated Preducts Operations

(millions of USS) 1997 1996 1995
Sales and operating

reventues 5693 5593 6,983
Operating incorne 29¢ 127 346
Shipments (kt) 1694 1539 1,733
Fabrication of

customer-owned metal 276 258 225
Totad polume L970 1,797 1958

Alcan’s fabricated products volumes. inclu-
ding fabrication of customer-owned metal,
rose 1% in 1997 o a record level of jusr
under two million ronnes, niore than com-
pemating for the 1996 fall that was due
mainly o the divestment of downstream
businesses. As well as enjoving strong marker
canditions in Europe and North America,
the Company achieved an increased share of
4 number of important markets, Adjusting
tor the impacr of divestments, fabricated
products sales have grown at a compound
annaal rare of 11% since 1993,

Operating income, at $290 million, was
more than deuble the 1996 level as a result
of higher volumes and rhe impact on margins
ot increased capaciry utilization.

Rolled Produces

Following capacity expansions in North
America and Europe in recent years, Alcan’s
tocus in these regions has been to consoli-
date ity positon as the world’s largest pro-
ducer of rolled aluminum products. Toral
rolled producrs volume, including conver-
sian of costomer-owned metal, rose 1o
1.752 tonnes, an increase of 12% over 1996,
Sales revenue inereased 7% to $3,804 mil-
lion, the lower percentage gain reflecring

Management’'s Discussion and Analysis

lower realizations primarily due to weaker
European currencies. Rolled products ship-
ments were 1,476 kr compared to 1,304 ki
in 1996 and 1,337 krin 1995, The average
realized price of $2,637/t was down from
$2.797/tin 1996 and $2,950/1 in 1995,

The 1997 decline was actriburable o the

lower dollar realizations on rranslation of
Luropean sales.

In North America, roral demand increased
some 2% and Alcan’s shipments were up
slightly more at 5.7%. The beverage can
marker grew by some 1.6% with can sheer
shipments up abour 2% over 1996, Alcan’s
shipments into domestic can sheet markers
increased over 5% indicaring a gain in
marker share. Distributor markets were
also strong with industry demand up over
10% and Alcan increasing its shipments
by 36%. This was offset to some degree by
a reducrion in the Company’s shipments
of building sheet. Capacity utilization was
approximately 90%.

The Luropean rolled products marker
recovered from its decline in 1996 o grow
by an estimared 6.5% in the vear, reflecring
stronger cconomic conditions in all the
major cconomics and a reversal of the cus-
tomer destocking that occurred in 1996,

Aluminum Shipments

and Purchases )
!

3,000

2,250

1.500

750

1993

1994 1995 1996 1997

lngot producis®
Fabricated products

fotal prnrl'm‘mf

* Includes primary
and sccondary inget
and scrap.

“* Includes products
fabricated from

Cll\'[ﬂlﬂc[-[’l\\'l‘l(‘d IHL‘[J‘.
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restilted i i
ficrease i thired-
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Alcan offers the
technology and the
metal to the auto-
motive industry,
Aluminum is used

in fim stock for heat
exchanger compo-
nents as well as
engine parts such
as Alcan’s high perfor-
mance pistons made
from advanced alloys
for the latest low-

emission engines.
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Alcan’s buropean rolling operarions increased
shipments by 16% with improved marker
share and higher exports. This sales growth
was broadly-based, with the most significant
increases being in foil stock, can body stock,
lithographic sheer and painted products.
German foil markets were particularly com-
petitive so, despite a significant increase in

sales volumes, revenues were nsufficient o
prevent a decline in proficabiliry of those
businesses. Higher sales volumes have led
ro most plants operating at their manned
capacity during 1997, although there is
still furcher porenual for increased volumes,
particularly at Nachterstedr in castern
Germany where the program to modernize
and cxpand the plant has now been
complered.

In South America, rolled products con-
sumpuon continued to be led by can shecet.
which grew 45% in 1997 with the statt-up
of several new canning lines. During the
vear, Alcan commenced a project to expand
capacity at its Pindamonhangaba, Brazil,
rolling mill from 100 kt te 280 kr and ro
build a used beverage can recycling facility.
This mill is the only roliing mill in South
Amcrica capable of producing can sheer.

Artontotive

During the vear, Alcan continued to make
significant gains in growing, its automotive
sheet business capruring a majority of the
autobody sheet business in North America,
Alcan is now the leading supplier of these
products te Norrh American automorive
manufacrurers.

Ford Moror Company showcased its impres-
sive Project 2000 PNGYV (Partnership for

a New Generation of Vehieles) car ro the
public at the end of 1997, Produced under
a joinc auro industry and U.S. government
initative aimed art rhe development of fuel-
efficient and environmentally-fricndly cars,
the vehicle improves fuel consumption to
63 m.p.g. and achieves a 53% muass reduction
in the body structure. As a full development
pattner, Alcan, with its Aluminum Vehicle
Technology, helped Project 2000 produce
the lightest mid-sized vehicle in the wotld
at jusr 2,000 Ibs.

The Tord Project 2000 and General
Motors’ EV (clectric vehicle) programs
bear witness to the growing importance
the automotive community is placing on
delivering carth-friendly, fuel-cfficient vehi-
ctes for the next generation of consumer
rransportation. Aluminum is positioned to
play a key role in helping the automakers
achiceve these poals, Alcan’s strategic mitatives
have put the Company in a strong position
to benefir from these growth opportunities.

Orher Fabricated Products

Sales of other fabricated products have
declined in recent years as a result of the
divestment of non-strategic downstream
businesses, most of which was completed
by 1996. Shipments in 1997 were 218 kt
compared to 235 krin 1996 and 396 ke the



vear before, Sales revenues were also lower, at
SLART million, compared 1o $1.404 million
1996 and $2.219 million 1n 1993, Average
price realizations were $5,445/t compared
83946/t and $5.61 1/t respecrively in the
two previous vears, The 1997 decline arose
lirgely in Europe where currencies were
substantially lower againse the ULS. dollar.

Alean's North American cable business
achieved further growth in the year. Demand
tor vverhead rransmission cable and service
cable increased moderately, but building wire
cxhibited major growth resulting in near-
record shipments and increased profitability.
fLis expeeted chat this trend will continue

i 1998,

Alaan architectural products business faced
highly competitive business conditions in
France but performed well in other markets.

Revveling Activities

Alcans North American used beverage can
(UBCY reeveling plancs again increased out-
put v 7.3%, o a record level of 18.3 billion
UBCs processed, of which over 2.1 billion
were collected by Alcan in Canada. In the
LK., where Alcan has the only UBC recy-
cling faciliny, the rate of beverage can recycling
continued o increase,

In Brasil, as part of Alcan’s expansion of can
sheet capacity, a new UBC recvcling opera-
tion was commissioned in February of 1998,

GEQGRAPHIC REVIEW

I'he improvement in carnings in most geo-
eraphic regions thar was seen towards the end
ol 1996 continued inw 1997, as customer
destacking was reversed and economic
activiny aceelerated. The effeces of the eco-
e erisis 1n Asta and slowdown in Japan
were feltin the second half of the year.

tharagement’s Discussion and Analysis

Net income darta included in this Geographic
Review relate ro Alcan’s operations in cach
region, whercas the shipment dara are clas-
sified according to third-party customer
location.

Netincome, presented below, does not reflect
the prior year tax reassessment in Canada and
related recovery trom other jurisdictions.

Canada
(millions af_ p‘.\‘S} 1997 1996 1995
Net frcome™ 245 175 216
Net income excluding
special items™ 219 188 231
Shipments (ki)
Ingot products 101 120 120
Fabricated products 110 120 112

* Net income in 1995 and 1997 is before extraordinary items.
Special items include: 1997 prior year tax adjustments,
1996 rationalization expenses and loss on early retirement
of debt, and 1995 loss on early retirement of debr.

1997 Aluminum
Shipments by Region

%
60
Western World
——  consumption
50
Alean Group
| shipments
40 (includes Alcan’s share
of related companies)
30

Alcan is one of the
most International
120 gluminum companies
with operations and
(Mo sales offices in over
30 countries. This is

e an impaortant com-

North South Europe Asla and Africa ; .P

America  America Pacific petitive advantage
in an increasingly
global marketplace.
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Architects and
designers are finding
that aleminuem’s high
strength-to-weight
ratio, versatility,
durability and decor-
ative potential offer
unique advantages
over alternative

materials.

!

Farnings from Canadian operations improved
in 1997 to reflect higher aluminum ingort
ptices but remained below the 1995 level.
Ingot prices in 1995 were substannially higher
than in 1996 and 1997, Incomec for 1995
was adversely affecred by some $70 million
by a labour strike in Quebec.

The Canadian economy remained robust

in 1997, with low interest rates spurring
pent-up demand. Domestic aluminum con-
sumption recovered in the year to increase
by 4% following a 1% decline in 1996,

Expansion of aluminum smelting operations
in Canada is planned. In February 1998, the
go-ahcad was given fora 375-kt smelter at
Alma, Quebec. Also, a feasibiticy study is
under way on a possible 225-kt expansion
in Brirish Celumbia.

United States

{wilions of US$) 199755 1996 = i
Net incorme 136 70 123
Net inconie excluding

special ftems” 136 7 929
Shiprents (kt)**

Ingot prodiucis 379 380 380

Fabricated products 905 874 918

" Special items include: 1996 loss on sale of business and
tax write-backs, and 1995 gain on sale of a busines.
** Includes fabrication of customer-olned metal.

Ner income in the U.S. almost doubled in
1997 principally duc to the strong increase
in tabricated preducts sales volume.

The U.S. cconomy continued at a strong,
steady pace and roral aluminum consump-
tion was up 6.3% afrer a flat year in 1996.
High levels of vehicle production and
construction activity were key drivers of
groweh, and can sheer demand was beteer
than expected with higher can volumes
and a slowing in the rare of downgauging.
The aluminum cable marker was also robust
with a good financial performance from

Alcan Cable.

South America

{(millions of USS) 1997 1996 1935
Net income 27 42 15
Net income excluding

special items” 17 29 15
Shipmenss (kt)

Ingot prodicts 2 24 13

Fabricated products 146 133 173

of businesses,

" Special items include: 1997 and 1996 gain on sale a



South America reported operating results
lower than i 1996, largely due to divesr-
ments. This resulted ina change in product
mus with a highcr proportion of shipments
nthe formeof primary metal. Adjusted for
divesuments, abnicated produces shipments
meteased by 15% in 1997,

Despite very lugh real mreresr rates intre-
duced in Brazil o prorecr the currency in
the wake of the Asian crisis, aluminum
demand in the region grew by about 10%
w0 1997, driven principally by can shect,
Stiong reglonal groweh is expected again
ms,

i evpansion of Alcan’s Pindamonhangaba
wlhing mill from 100 ki to 280 ki with
sociated UBC reeveling capacity is under
wav with the increased capacing becoming
walible in stages in 1998 and 1999,

Eurcpe
' (millions of USS) 1997 1996 1995
Net income 55 21 161
Net income exclirding
- special items”® 35 26 164
 Shipmenss (kt)*"
Ingor producis 106 §9 95
Fabricated products 726 630 756

* Special items include: 1996 rationalization expenses
and tax write-backs.

|
\
\
\
‘ v . .

| **Includes fabrication of customer-owned metal
‘ ;

\

Nt income from European operations
wassharphy higher in 1997 due o a 16%
v 10 fabricated products sales volume,
olfser part by pressure on profic margins
msome markers.

Fanapemer:

All the major Furopean economics experi-
enced betrer economic conditions in 1997
than 1 the previows vear. Aluminum con-
sumption rebounded from the drop in 1996
to recard growth estimated at 6.5%, led
principally by the building. transportaion
and G sheer markers. Alean’s shipments
sigivificanthy exceeded the marker gains
with sales volume up 16% . indicating an
increased share o many markes. as well ay
imcrcased exports. Most Lurepean currendics
weakened against che WS dollar Teowas

not possible to pass on the resulun local-
curreney ncrease i purchased wetal coses
e customers immediate)y, leading o down-
wird pressure on prolit margins, especially

during the carly part ot che vear.

Shipments from German Operations were
up 24% . with increased expores helped

by the weaker Deurschmark. Foil markets
were subject to increased competitive pres-
sure. resulting in a decline in carnings from
those businesses, Udilization of the nowly
expanded capacine ac Norfand Nachreraed

iﬂ]Pl'{)\'CLl Lllll'iﬂg tll&.‘ Vel

[n the UKL the volume micrease was more
modest, at 4%, party due to the sironger
pound sterling impacting expore sales, and
partly to production constraints in che carly
part ol the vear. The refurbishment of the
idled porine ar the Lynemouth smelrer s
near o compledion and il allow the restan
of 66 ke ol annual capacity when market
condidions permit. Lxceptional costs of

ST8 million afier wax are included in respect
ol this project.

Sales volumes from Alcan’s operations in Traly
were up 7% with strong sales of painted

sheer products.

o Discussinon and Analysis
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For the packaging
market, not enly does
aluminum provide
supérjor barrier
qualities, blocking
out light, oxygen

and moisture, it also
offers graphic design
possibilities as weltl
as being economical,

convenient and

recyclable.

V

In France, conditions in the building svstems
market continued t be highly comperitive,
while the overseas business of Alcan France
performed well in most markets.

The alumina refinery in Ireland mainwained
1ts low conversion costs and achieved s
highest-cver producdion volume.

Asia and Pacific

(millions of USS) LoD G 005
Net income (Loss) (1) i3 43
Net income excluding

special iteras™ 29 25 43
Shipments (ke)

Ingor products 245 199 193

Fabricated products 76 i3 512

™ Special items include: 1997 construction contract losses
and ravionalization expenses, and 1996 rationalization
eXPENSEs.

Income, excluding special items, frem this
region was little changed in the vear, but
the second half was marked by a deteriora-
tion in business conditions. The increase in
fabricared products shipments refleces che
consolidation for the full vear of operations
in Malaysia and Thailand tollowing the
restructuring of Alcan’s investments in the
region in 1996, as well as increased exports
into the region, In dhe third quarter, a charge
to net income of $30 million was madc

in respect of construction contract losses
and restructuring costs at the Company’s
45.6%-owned related company in Japan,
Nippon Light Mcral Company. Lid. (NLM}.

Aluminum consumption grew by an est-
mared 3% 1n the region in 1997 but the
trend reversed sharply with strong growth
inn the first halt of the vear and a decline
in the second half. The outlook tor 1998
remains uncertain.

In Japan, a consumer boam in rhie firse
quarter ahiead of an increase in consumprion
rax was followed by a severe downrurn

in demand with the consiruction market
particularly badly affcered. Aleans affiliare,
NLM. experienced a sharp drop in ship-
ments to the building marker and its build-
ing products subsidiary is undergoing a
major rationalization program. In addition,
a number of other restructuring and divest-
ment measures are being inirlated.

For Alcan’s fabricating businesses in Southeast
Asia, it was a difficult and challenging year.
The financial crisis. which hir the region

in the second half of 1997, saw currencies
plunge and demand for aluminum producrs
fall. In Thailand, business was particularly
hard hir by a collapse in large-scale con-
struction acrivity. In Malavsia, lower profits
mainly reflecred reduced demand for sheet
products. With this tough environment
foreseen to continuce in 1998, Alcan’s busi-
nesses 0 the region are focusing on export
opportunitics, cost reduction, and working
capital management.

In Australia, earnings from alumina sales
improved in 1997 to reflect higher alumina
prices.



Indian aluminum demand growth was lower
than in recent years at abour 3%. Ac Indian
Algmnnium Company, Limited {Indal),
34.6%-owned by Alcan, prices und margins
were under pressure due to competitors’
capactty expansions. Accordingly, cost reduc-
tion and improved asset utilization have
emerged as kev priorities for Indal.

Otr.er Areas
(miklians of USS) 3 1997 1996 1995
Net income ] 31 39
Net income excluding
special items” 35 35 39
Shipments (kz)
Ingar products — ! —
Fabricated products 7 7 7

*Special items in 1996 were mainly rationalization expenses.

Activities in other arcas include raw materials
aperations in Jamaica, CGuinea and Ghana,
and trading, shipping and insurance activities
in Bermuda. Alcan also sells meral in other
parts of the world such as rhe Middle East
and Africa,

LIGUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQOURCES

Cash generation In 1997 was slightly ahead
ot the previous year reflecring the improve-
ment i profitability. Calculated hy taking
the net income for the vear and adding

hack depreciation and deferred income raxes,
cash generation was $913 million compared
to 3856 million in 1996 and $1,164 million
in 1993,

Net operating working capital requirements
mereased $125 million in 1997, following
a 563-million decline the previous year. This
was entirely due to higher sales volumes with
tight working capital management reflecred
hva fall in the number of days’ sales in
working capiral.

.
¥

Following reassessment of income taxes
relating to prior vears, an amount of

5134 million was paid to the Canadian
authorities to prevent the further accrual
of interest. Most of this is recoverable frem
other jurisdictions and has, accordingly,
been included in deferred receivables,

Disposal proceeds from the sale of non-
strategic businesses and other assets were
$34 million, sharply lower than the 1996
fevel of $660 million as the divestment
program reached its conclusion.

Total borrowings were little chunged during
the year, following the substantial debr repay-
ments and preference share redemption of
the preceding year. Cash and time deposirs
increased $62 million in 1997, reaching a
level of $608 million ar vear-end. The ratio
of roral borrowings to equity was unchanged
from the previeus vear at 23:77 which com-
pares to 29:71 at the end of 1995. The rario
improves further, to 16:84, when adjusted
for surplus cash reserves.

Total Borrowings and Equity
(at year-end)

anagement’s Discussion and Analysis

millions
of US$ ratio
6,000 40:60

70

3,000

10:90

1993 1994 1995 1996

1997

Total borrowings

Equity

(includes minority
interests and pref-
erence shares)

Ratio of total
borrowings to equity

Alcan’s borrowings-
to-equily ratio
remained at a healthy
level in 1997 despite
the working capital
requirements of
increased volume.
Adjusted for surplus
cash at year-end, the
ratio was 16:84.
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Aluminum’s high elec-
trical conductivity has
long made it a materjal
af choice. Alcanis a
major supplier to all
sectors of the electrical
industry and has
established growing
relationships with
pawer utilities, distri-
butars and equipment

Investment Activities

Capiral investment in the year was 5641 mil-
lion, an increase from $432 million and
S441 million in 1996 and 1995, respec-
tively. On an ongeing basis, approximarely
5450 o 5500 million is required annually
o maintain the ntegrity and competitive-
ness of the Company’s assets. Additional

expenditures in 1997 related primarily
to the refurbishment and upgrade of the
Lynemouth smelrer in the UK and the
expansion of rolling capacity in Brazil.

[n 1998, projects, other than to mainin
existing assets, include the continuation of
the rolling mill expansion project in Brazil,

Cash Flows

manufacturers.
millions of US$
1,800
Sales of assets and
IHEESEens
Cash from operating |
activities T30
Dividends paid
“apital expenditres ———
Capital expenditure =
Cash generation
remained in excess
of capital expends- 450

ture and working
capital requirements.
Debt levels were
unchanged and cash
reserves inereased to
S608 milfion.
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1997

1993 1995 1996

with approximarcly $150 million expendi-
ture planned in the vear. The Alma smelrer
project in Quebee, commencing in March
1998, will entail an investouent of $1.6 bil-
lion over a three-vear period. Tn addition,
the Company intends to bid, in parmership
with Aluminuwm Company of America, for
70% ol the starc-owned aluminum assets in
Venezuela that are being privatized in 1998,
If successtul, Alcan would have an effective
289 share of those assets.

The program ef divestmenr of non-strategic
businesses was largely completed by carly
1997, Over a three-vewr period, the Company
made « number of disposals 1o Canada, the
.S the UKL Ausoralia and South America
which generated proceeds of 51.25 billon,
used mataly to repav debr.

Financing Actlvities

Total borrowings at the end of 1997 were
unchanged from 1996 a1 $1.5 billion and
5470 million less than in 1995, Alcan’s debt
o equity ratio ol 23:77 s the lowest in the
Company’s history and positions Alcan well
to take advanrage of attiacrive invesement
opportunitics as thev become available.,

The quarterly common share dividend

was maintained at 13 cents per share in
1997 compared 1o 1996, The dividend was
increased from 7.5 conts 10 15 cents per
share in 1995, Towal dividends paid 1o com-
mon sharcholders were 8136 million in
1996 and 1997 compared 1o $ 101 million
1 1993, Preference share dividends were
S10 million versus $16 million in 1996
and 824 million in 1993,



Cash reserves tatalled $608 million ar the
end of the vear compared to $54G million
and 366 million at the end of 1996 and
1995, respectively, In addition, the Company
continues o have a $1 billion global, mulri-
vear and multi-currency credic facilicy with
asndicate of major international banks.

At December 31, 1997, no funds had been
borrowed under this facility and the full
amount was available. The Company’s
imestment grade credit rating also provides
Acan with ready access to global capital
markets through the issuance of debr and
cqULTY INSTTUnICnts.

The Company expects that cash generared
from aperations, combined with the above
resaurces, will be more than sutficient o
meet the cash requirements of operations,
planned capiral expenditures and dividends.
bassting resources, and liquid capital markers
Al provide ample liquidity to mect unfore-
NCCEHD eYEntS.

KEMANQ COMPLETION PROJECT

In the chird gquarter of 19953, the Company
wrote Jown s invesrment in the Kemano
Completion Project (KCP), following the
projects cancellation by the Brivish Columbia
covernment. After esrimated disposal pro-
veeds and site restorarion costs, the amounr
of the write-down was $420 million, result-
ing in an extraordinary loss of $280 million
on an ifter-rax basis.

Incarly 1997, Alcan filed, in the Briush
Columbia Supreme Courr, a writ of
summaons naming the province of Brirish
Cobimbia as defendane in a lawsuit for
damages arising from the government’s

Marnagement’s Discussion and Analysis

rejection of KCE The Company continued
negotiations with the Provinge and, on
August 3, 1997, a final scrrlement agree-
ment ways signed that resolved the issues

surrounding KCI

The principal elements of the agreement
were the provision of replacement power,
which would be made available if Alcan were
to expand its operations in Brinsh Columbia
in the future, and the mainrenance and
enhancement ol an existing conrract whereby
Alcan sells power ro B.C. Hydro. Alcan
also agreed to contriburte o environmental
improvements in the region. The agreement
provided for the issuance by the Provinee
of Alcan’s final Warer Licence and Permit
of Occupadon.

The availabilivy of replacement power restores
to Alcan the opportunity of a low-cost smelrer
expansion in Briush Columbia. The Company

believes that the sertlement agreement is in
the best intereses of shareholders.

Following the settlement, the power sales
conrract was split and the right o sell

167 MW to B.CC. Lvdro, at the California-
Oregon border, was sold to Fnron Corp.,

4 11.S.-based energy provider. The gain on
this sale, net of the write-off of remuaining
KCP assets, amounting to $17 million, 1s one
element of the setclement that is realized
and quantifiable. Accordingly. it has been
treated as an extraordinary gain.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Alcan is committed to the continued envi-
ronmental imptovement of its operations
and products. The Company has devored,
and will continue to devote, significant
resources 1o control air and watet pollutants,
to dispose of wastes and to remediare sires
of past waste disposal. Alcan estimartes that
annual environment-related spending, both
capital and expense, will average abourt
$190 million per vear over the next several
years and is not expected to have a material
etfect on its comperitive position. While
the Company docs not anticipate a material
increase in the projected level of such expen-
ditures, there is always a possibiliry that
such increases may occur in the future in
view of the uncertainties associated with
environmental exposures, including new
information concerning sites with identified
environmental liabilities and changes in
laws and regulations and their application.

Included in towal operaring costs and expenses
for the year are amounts for safcguarding
the environment and improving working
conditions in plants. In 1997, such expenses
toralled $88 million. This amount was
fargely for costs associated with reducing

air cmissions and mitigating the impact of
waste and by-products. In 1995 and 1990,
these expenses totalled $76 million and

$96 miliion, respectively.

Included in capital spending in 1997 was
$84 million for environment-related projects.
Such spending was largely on equipmenr
designed to reduce or conrain air emissions
generared by Alcan plants. Spending in 1995
and 1996 was $53 million and $60 million,
respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk Management

As a multinational company engaged in

a commodity-related business, Alcan’s
financial performance is heavily influenced
by fluctuarions in metal prices and exchange
rates. In order to reduce the associared risks,
the Company uses a variety of financial
instrunients and commodity conrracts.

All risk management activities are governed
by clearly defined policics and management
conttols. Transactions in financial instru-
ments for which there is no underlying
exposure are prohibited.

The decision whether and when ro com-
mence a hedge, along with the durarion of
the hedge, can vary from period to period
depending on market conditions and the
rclative costs of various hedging instruments.
The duration of a hedge is always linked

ro the timing of the underlying transacrion,
with the connecrion between the rwo con-
stantly monitored to ensure effecriveness.

Foreign Currency Exchange

Exchange rate movements, particularly
berween the Canadian dollar and the U.S.
dollar, have an important impact on Alcan’s
results. For example, on an annual basis,
cach US$0.01 permanent change in rhe
value of the Canadian dollar has an after-rax
impact of approximarely $11 million on the
Company’s long-term profitability. Alcan
benefits from a weakening in rhe Canadian
dollar, but, conversely, is disadvantaged if it
strengthens. In order to reduce the short-term
volatility in costs arising from movements



i exchange rates, Alcan hedges a substantial
portien of its Canadian dollar exposure
through the use of forward exchange con-
traces and currency options.

Tor turther dertails, refer to note 16 of the
Ainancial statemenrs,

From the beginning of 1998, following

4 chunge ro the accounting standards

ot the Canadian Insriture of Charrered
Accountants on accounting for income
txes. the Company's deferred income tax
habiliy is vranslated inco ULS. dollars ar
current rates, The resultant exchange gains
o losses are included I income. The impact
of 1 US80.0) movement in the value of
the Canadian dollar on deferred income
taxes 1s approximately $6 million.

Aluminum Prices

Depending on market conditions and
logistical considerations, Alcan may sell
prinary duminum o third parties and may
purchase primary and secondary aluminum,
meluding scrap. on the open market to meer
the requirements of its fabricating businesses.
I addition. depending on pricing arrange-
ments wich fabricated products customers,
Alean may hedge some of its purchased
metal supply in support of those sales.

Through the use of forward purchase and
sale contracts and options, Alcan seeks to
limit the impact of lower meral prices, while
reraining che abilicy to benefit from higher
prices. The Company may also, through a
combination of hedging instruments, estab-
lish 4 range of sales prices for a certain
porten ot s future revenues.

Alcan estimares that o an annual basis,
cach S100 per tonne change in the price of
duminuny has an after-tax impact of approx-
imately $100 million on the Company’s
long-term profitability.

Tor turther derails, refer to note 16 of the
financial statements.

Hanagemeni's Discuswior and Analysis

The Year 2000 Issue

Alcan has a program which is well under
way to examine and resolve Year 2000
issucs as they affect the Company. The
objective of the program is 1o ensure that
the business- and process-related systems
technology relied on by the Company
accurately processes date-related dara

prior to, during and after, the year 2000.
The program includes the assessment of
hardware and sofrware as well as coordina-
tion with third parties where electronic
interaction is present. In the event that
Year 2000 issues could not be resolved

in a timely fashion, the Company could
face poteniial business interruptions or
delavs. Alcan is therefore dedicating sub-
stantial resources to its program (o permit
an orderly transition through the vear 2000,
The Company has not completed its assess-
ment of Year 2000 1ssues. Based on infor-
mation to date, the costs of remediation and
coordination are not expecred to have a
marterial adverse impact on the Company's
financial condition.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this report that describe the
Company’s objectives, projections, esiimates,
expectations or predictions of the future
may be ‘forward-looking statements” within
the meaning of applicable securities laws
and regulations. The Company cautions that
such statements involve risk and uncertaingy
and that actual results could differ marerially
from those expressed or implied. Important
facrors that could cause differences include
global aluminum supply and demand con-
dirtons, aluminum ingot prices and other raw
materials’ cost or avatlabiliry, cvelical demand
and pricing in the Company’s principal
markers, changes in government regulations,
econowic developments within the countries
in which the Company conducts business,
and other factors relating ro the Company’s
operations, such as hitigation. labour nego-
tiations and fiscal regimes.
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Responsibility for the Annual Report

Alcan’s management is responsible for the pteparation, integtity and fait presentadon of the financial statements and otk
informatjon in the Annual Repott. The financial statemenis have been prepated in accordance with accounting prina
generally accepted in Canada and include, where appropriare, estimates based on the best judgement of management Te
conform in all material respects with accounting principles established by the International Accounting Standards Comnm
A reconciliation with accounting ptinciples generally accepted in the United States is also presented. Financial and opepa
data elsewhere in rhe Annual Report are consistent with that conrained in the accompanying financial srarements.

Alcan’s policy is to maintain systems of internal accounting and administrative controls of high qualicy consistent wi
reasonable cost. Such systems are designed ro provide reasonable assurance thar che financial information is accurate o
reliable and that Company assets are adequately accounted for and safeguarded. The Board of Directors oversees the
Company’s systems of internal accounting and administrative controls through its Audit Committec, which is comp
of directors who ate not employees. The Audit Commitree meets regularly with representatives of the shareholder’w
pendent auditors and management, including internal audic staff, o satisfy themselves that Alcan’s policy is being follow

The Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of Price Waterhouse as the independent auditors, subjd
1o approval by the sharcholders.

The financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and, together with the other required informs
in this Annual Reporr, approved by the Board of Directors. In addition, the financial stacements have been auditedly
Price Waterhouse, whose repotr is provided below.

Q—-sb«ﬂ/wv—" O S

Jacques Bougie, Suresh Thadhani,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

February 12, 1998

OECD Guidelines

The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OGECD), which consists of 24 industrialized couna
including Canada, has established guidelines serting out an acceptable framework of reciprocal rights and responsiban
between multinational enterprises and host governments.

Alcan supports and complies with the OECD guidelines, and the Company’s own statement, Alean, Its Purpose, Objecm
and Policies, is consistent with them. This statement, first published in 1978, has been distributed in 11 languagesw
Alean employees worldwide to strengthen the awareness of the basic principles and policies which have guided the
conduct of Alcan’s business over the years,

The statement of Alcan’s purpose, objectives and policies, the Company’s annual informarion form and its 10-K reper|

. . . . . 1
are all available to sharcholders on request. The latter two documents conrain a complere list of significant Alcan Gmi
companies worldwide.

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Alcan Aluminium Limited

We have audited rhe consolidared balance sheet of Alcan Aluminium Limited as at December 31, 1997, 1996 and 11
and the consolidated statements of income, retained carnings and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year pom
ended December 31, 1997, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our e
sibility is to express an opinton on these financial statements based ¢n our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepred auditing standards. Those standards require that we pllk
and perform an audit ro obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statemnents are free of marerial misstatement
An audit includes examining, on a tesr basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staemesh
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as wel
as evaluating the overall financial statement presenration.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all marerial respects, the financial position of tt
Company as at December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 and the resules of its operations and its cash flows for each of the v
in the three-year period ended December 31, 1997 in accordance wirh Canadian generally accepted accounting principm

Price Waterhouse Montreal, Canada

Chartered Accountants February 12, 1998
(except as to note 22 which is as of February 19, 1998)



Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Income
(in mitlions of USS, excepr per chare amatnis)

Alcan Aluminium Limited

Revenues

Year cnded December 31 1997 1996 [995
Sales and operating revenucs $7.777 $7.614 $9,287
Orther income 83 75 100
7,865 7,689 9,387
Costs and Expenses
Cost of sales and operating expunses 5,995 5,905 7.233
Depreciation (nore 2) 436 431 447
Selling, administrative and general expenses 444 422 484
Research and development expenses 72 71 76
Interest 101 125 204
Other expenses 54 88 61
7,102 7,042 8,505
Income before income taxes and other items 763 647 882
Income taxes (noze 5) 258 226 340
Income before other items 505 421 542
Equiry loss (nore 7) (33) (10) 3)
Minority interests (4) (1) 4
Nert income before extraordinary item 468 & 410 $ 543
Extraordinary gain (loss) (nere 3) 17 — (280)
Net income $ 485 $ 410 $ 263
Dividends on preference shares 10 16 24
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 475 5 3% $ 239
Net income per common share before ' o ' o
extraordinary item (nate 2) $ 2.02 $ 1.74 $ 2.30
Extraordinary gain {loss) per common share (rate 3) 0.07 — {1.24)
Net income per conunon share (note 2) $ 2.09 § 1.74 $ 1.06
Dividends per common share $ 0.60 $ 0.60 $ 0.45
Consolidated Statement of Retained Farnings
(in millions of US§)
Year ended December 31 1997 1996 1995
Retained earnings — beginning of year $3,217 $2,959 $2,821
Net income 485 410 263
3,702 3,369 3,084
Dividends - Common 136 136 101
— Preference 10 16 24
Retained éérnings —end of year (nore [4) $3,356 $3,217 $2,959
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Consolidated Financial Statements reoneinued)

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(in millions of (J55)

Assets

December 31 1997 1996 1995
Current assets o
Cash and time deposits $ 608 $ 5406 366
Receivables 1,292 1,262 1,449
[nventories
Aluminum 800 730 338
Raw marerials 307 325 321
Other supplies 234 244 281
1,341 1,305 1490
N ) T 3,241 3,113 3,0_65_
Deferred chargcs and other assets R4 T 314 364
Investments (wotes 7 and 9) 343 428 695
Property, pldm and cquipmcnt (note 8)
Clost 11,715 11,517 11,755
Accumulated depreciation 6,257 6,047 6,063
T5438 5470 5,672
Total assets S  $9,466 $9,325 $9,736
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity o
Current liabilities
Payables $1,052 $1,008 51,107
Short-term borrowings 238 178 212
Income and other taxes 98 98 101
Debr maturing wichin one year (rotwe £1) 30 19 28
S T o ' 1,424 1,303 1,448
Dbt not rila-rui‘ing within -onc.y'car (um(;,'ﬁ.ff;a’_f(;)i ) T 241 1.319 1.745
Deeterred credits and other Labilities (e 16) 715 770 701
Deferred income taxes 969 996 979
Minority interests (noze 9) 43 73 28
Sharcholders™ equiry
Redeemable nen-retractable preference shares (nore 12) 203 203 353
Common shareholders’ equity
Common shares (wore 13) 1,251 1,235 1,219
Rerained carnings (rore 14) 3,536 3,217 2,939
Deferred translation adjustments (nore 15) 64 209 304
) 4871 40661 4,482
I T 5074 4864 4,835
Commirments and contingencies (mote 17) ' ' T
Towl liabilities and shareholders’ equity 89,466 $9.325  $9,736
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Approved by the Board:

c, m/\o\'v— .
Jacques Bougie, WRLC, Blundell,
Direcror Director
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Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

{tn millions of 1/53)
Year ended December 31 1997 1996 19935
Operating activities
Nert income $ 485 5410 $ 263
Adjustments to determine cash from operating activities:
Extraordinary loss — — 280
Depreciation 436 431 447
Deterred income taxes (8) 15 174
Equity income — net of dividends 39 21 2
Change in receivables {(30) 187 (38)
Change in inventories {37) 185 (107)
Change in payables 44 (99) 11
Change in income and other taxes payable — 3) 78
Changes in operating working capital due to:
Deferred translation adjustments (93) (29) 33
Acquisitions, disposals and consolidations/deconsolidations (9} (178) (77}
Change in deferred charges, other agsets, deferred credirs
and other liabilities — net (139) 25 30
Gain on sales of businesses — net (12) (8} (34}
Other — net 43 24 (28)
Cash from operating activities , 719 981 1,044
Flnancing activities
New debt 22 56 90
Debt repayments (25) (459) (738)
(3) (403 (648)
Short-term horrowings — nt 90 (11) 4
Common shares issued 16 16 24
Shares issued by subsidiary companies — — 1
Redemption of preference shares — (150) —
Dividends — Alcan shareholders {including preference) (146) (152) (12%)
— Minerity interests {3) — —
Cash used for ﬁna_ﬁéing activities T (46) (7000 ~ (744)
Investment activities
Property, plant and equipment (641} (482) (390)
Investments — — (38)
Other — — {13)
(641) (482)  (441)
Net proceeds from disposal of businesses and other assets 54 660 168
Cash from (uscd for) investment activities i o {587) 178 (273)
Efect of exchange rate Ehangcs on cash and time deboéits (12) o 1
Increase in cash and time deposits 74 458 28
Cash of companies consolidared {deconsolidated) - net (12} 22 11
Cash and dme deposits — beginning of year 546 66 27
Cash and time deposits — end of year - ' $ 608 $546 5 66
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(el ol LSS ciepi where tidivated,

1. Nature of Operations

Alcan is engaged, together widh subsidianes and related companies. in all aspects of the alumpum
business onan international scale, Trs operattons include the mining and processing of bauxire. the
busic aluminum ore: the refining of bausite imo alumina: the generation of elecrric power for nse in
smeltiing almioum: the smeling of aluminum from alumina: the recveling of used and scrap aliminum;
the tabrication of aluminum. aluminum alleys and non-aluminum materials i semi-tabricated and
finished products; the distribution and marketng of aluminun: and non-aluminum products: and. in
comection with its aluminum operations, the production and sale of industrial chemicals. Alean. rogether
with s subsidiaries and related companies. has bausite holdings i six countries. produces aluminain
nine, smelts primary aluminun in <is. operates aluminum fabricating plants in 14 and has sales ourlets
and maintains warchouse inventovies in the larger markers of the world, Alcun ulso operates a global
rransportation netwerk that indludes bulk cargo vessels, pore facilies and freight tains,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial starements in conformity wirh generally accepred accounting principles
requires management (o make extimares and assumptions thar affect the reported amounts of ussets and
habilizies and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reportng period. Actual results could difter from
those estimares.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated finandiai statements, which are expressed in ULS. dollars, the principal currency of
Alcan’s business. are prepared in accordance with generally accepred accounting principles (GAAF) in
Canada. They include the accounts of companies controlled by Alcan. virwually all of which are majority
owned. Joint ventures. irrespective of percentage of ovwnership, are proportionarely consolidated to the
extent of Alcan’s participation. Consolidated net mcome also inciudes Alcans equity in the ner income
or loss of companies owned 50% or less where Alcan has signiticant influence over management, and
the investment in these companies is increased or decreased by Alcan's share of their undistribured net
income or loss and deferred rranslation adjustnents since acquisition, Investments in companices in
which Alcan does not have significant influence over management are carried at cost less amounts
writren off,

Intercompany balances and transactions. including profits in inventories. are climinated.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The fipancial statements of self- susraining foreign operanons are tramslared inro U5, dollars at pre-
vailing exchange rates. leiucmm arising from exchange rate changes are indluded in the Deferred
translation deuu[mcms {(D'T'A) component of Common sharcholders cquity. [T there is a reduction in
the Company’s ownership o a forclon operation. the relevant porion of D'UA is recognized in Other
income or Other expenses at that time,

Gains or losses on forward exchange conuacs or currency aptions, all of swhich serve 1o hedge certain
fucure identiflable foreign currency exposures. are incleded. rogether with relited hedging costs, in
Sales and operating revenues or Cost of sales and operaring expenses, as applicable, concurrently with
recognition of the underlving Liems being hedged.

Unrealized gains or Tosses on currency swaps. all of which are used to hedge certain idenrifiable foreign
currency dnbt obligations. are recorded concurrenty with the unrealized gains o1 losses on the debt
ohhgarlons being hedged.

Orher gains and losses from foreign currency denominared frems are included in Other income or
Other expenses.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . awirincd)

fon mitfionn of S5, CECep where paedieared)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
COMMODLTY CONTRACTS AND OPTIONS

Cains o1 Tosses on forward metal concracts and oprions, all of which serve o hedge certain future
Identifiable aluminum price exposures, are included, rogether with related hedging costs, in Sales and
operatng revenues or Cost of sales and operating expenses, as applicable, concurrendy with recagnition
of the underlving irems being hedged.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS

Net cash flows related o inierest rate swaps are recorded in Trierest concurrently widh the interes
expense on the underlving debe.

INYENTORIES

Aluminum, raw materials and other supplies are stated ai cost (determined for the most part on the
monthly average merhod) or ner realizable value, whichever Is the lower,

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is calculated on the ﬂmight—linc merhod using rates based on the estimared usctul lives of
the respective assets. The principal rares are 2'/2% for bul|dmns and range from 1% 1o 4% for power
assers and 3% to 12'/2% for chemical, smelter and Llhumnnﬂ 258CT8,

ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS AND LIABILITIES

Environmental expenses are accrued when ivis probable thar a liabilite for past evenes exisis. For future
removal and sice restoration costs, provision is made in a svstematic manner by periodic charges o
income, excepr for assets that are no longer in use, in which case full pravision is charged immediately
to income. Environmenral expenses are nmnnlh included in Cost of sales and wperating expenses
except for large. unusual amounts which are included in Other expenses. Accruals relared to environ-
menal costs are included in Mayables and Deferred credits and other liabilides,

Environmental expenditures of a capital nature that extend the life, increase the capacity or improve
the safery of an asset or chat mitigate or prevent environmental contamination that has yer o occur are
included in Property, plant and cquipment and are depreciaced generally over the remaining useful life
of the underlying asser.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The costs of post-retirement benefits other than pensions are recognized on an accrual basis over the
working lives of employees,

NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Netincome per comman share is calculated by dividing Net income anriburable o common
sharcholders by the average number of comman shares OLlI\mndan 1997: 227.0 millian; 1996:

226.2 million: 1993: 225.3 million).

3. Extraordinary Items — Kemano Completion Project

An extranrdinury gain of 326 ($17 after tax or 7 cents per commen share) in the fourth guarger of 1997
arises from the salc of a portion ol a contract to supply power o B.C.. Fivdra. net of additional write-
downs of remaining Kemano Complerion Projece ("KOP7) agsers. In addition to the commitment by
the government of British Columbia o xuppl_\ replacement pawer al atcracrive rates for a possinle
smelrer expansion, the serdlement of the dispure regarding the cancellation of KCP allowed the Company
to sell 1o a thind party the right o supply a speditied anonnt of power to B.C Hydro under an ongoing
contract. An exrraordinury loss of $420 ($280 ufier tax or $1.24 per common share) was recorded

in 1995 following the cancelbaion af the projec.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(ire millions of USS, except where indicared)

4. Differences Between Canadian and United States Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles (GAAP)

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

Under Canadian GAAPD, deferred income taxes are measured ar tax rates prevailing ac the tme che
provisions for deferred raxes are made. Deferred income raxes for U.S. GAAP are revalued cach period

using currently enacted tax rates.

Under Canadian GAAPD deferred income taxes of operarions using the temporal method are rranslated
ac historical exchange rates, while ender U.S. GAAP, deferred income taxes of all operations are

translated at current exchange rares.

Beginning in 1998, the Company will adopt the new accounting standards approved by the Capadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants dealing with accounting for income taxes. These new standards are

substantially identical ro U.S. GAAP as contained in FASB Statement No. 109.

CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Under Canadian GAAP, unrealized exchange gains and losses on translation of long-term monetary
items are deferred and amortized over the life of those items, whereas, under U.S. GAAD, such gains
and losses are absorbed in income immediately.

RECONCILIATION OF CANADIAN AND U.5. GAAP

1997 1996 1995
As U.s. As U.s. As U.S.
Reported GAAP  Reported GAAP  Reported GAAP
Net income from
continuing opcrations
belore extraordinary
item $ 468 $ 504 $ 410 5 420 543 5 501
Extraordinary gain (loss) 17 17 — — (280) (295)
Net income™ $ 485 $ 521 $ 410 § 420 $ 263 266
Nert incorne atributable
to commaon
sharcholders $ 475 $ 511 $ 394 3 404 $ 239 $ 242
Extraordinary gain (loss)
per common share $ 0.07 $ 0.07 5 — § — $(1.24) 3 (L31)
Net income per
COoN1Mmon Sharc
{basic and diluted} $ 2.09 $ 2.25 $ 1.74 $ 1.79 $ 1.06 $§ 1.07
Deferred income taxes
— December 31 $ 969 $ 684 $ 996 $ 755 $ 979 § 762
Retained earnings
— December 31 $3.556 $3,895 $3,217 $3,520 $2,959 $3,252
Deferred translation
adjustments {DTA)
— December 31 $  Gd 3 3 $ 209 $ 141 $ 304 $ 214

*In 1997, 837 (82 in 1996 and 31 in 1995) of the net difference between s Reported * and “UL.S. GAAP” relates 1
acconntinty for deferred income taxes. In 1997, $23 of thes difference arises from changes in tax rates and regulations enacted

during the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(in millions of USS, except where indicared)

4, Differences Between Canadian and United States Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) (cont’d)

The principal items included in Deferred income taxes under LS. GAAP are:
December 31

1997 1996 1995
Liabilities:
Depreciation $ 767 % 810 $ 844
Undistribured carnings of equity companies 29 60 86
Inventory valuation 52 43 48
Orther ) o 64 7 57
- - 2 990 1,035
Assets:
Tax benefir carryovers 114 121 184
Accounting provisions not currently deductible for tax 164 180 199
Other - 26 18 9
304 319 392
Va]uatiqn allowance (amount not !jkel_y to be recovered) N 76 84 119
_ 228 235 273
Net deferred income tax liability $ 684 § 755 $ 762

The difference berween DTA under Canadian GAAP and U.S. GAAP arises principally from the impace
of FASB Statement No. 109 and from che different trearment of exchange on long-term debe at
January 1, 1983, resulting from the adoption of accounting standards on foreign currency translation,

Net income {Loss) from continuing operations, before cumulative effvct on prier years of accounting
change, on a U.S. GAAP basis for the years 1994 and 1993 was $173 and $(89), respectively, compared
to $96 and $(104), respectively, as reported. Net income (Loss) from continuing operations, before
cumularive effect on prior years of accounting change, per common share on a U.S. GAAD basis for the
years 1994 and 1993 was $0.69 and $(0.47), respectively, compared to $0.34 and $(0.54), respectively,
as reported.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (conrinued)
(tn millions of US$, excepr where indicused)

5. Income Taxes

44

1997 1996 1995
Income before income taxes and other items
Canada $360 $235 $300
Other countries 403 412 582
763 647 882
Current income taxes
Canada 251 87 29
Other countries 15 124 137
266 211 166
Deferred income taxes
Canada (28) (5) 114
Other countries 20 20 60
(8) 15 174
Income tax provision $258 $226 $ 340

The composite of the applicable statutory corporate income tax rates in Canada is 40.3% (1996: 40.1%;
1995: 40.3%). The followmg i1s a reconciliarion of income raxes calculated at the above compaosite

statutory rates W’ll’l"l the i Income rax pl"OVlSlOﬂ

1997 1996 1995
Income taxes ar the composite statutory rate $307 $259 $355
Differences arttributable ro:
Exchange rranslation items 13 11 17
Unrecorded tax benefits on losses — nert (12) (33) (3)
Investmenr and other allowances (32) (24) {24}
Large corporations rax 3 3 6
Wirhholding taxes 5 6 6
Reduced rate or tax exempt items 3 17 {21)
Foreign tax rate differences 1 9 (6
Prior vears’ tax adjustments (31) (1D (6)
Other — net 7 7 18
Income tax provision $258 $226 $§ 340

In 1997 $19 ($7 in 1996; $2 in 1995) of benefits related to income tax loss carryforwards were recorded

in deferred income tax expense.

Based on rares of exchange at December 31, 1997, additional benefits of approximately $60 relating
ro prior and current years' tax losses will only be recognized in income when realized.

In 1997, income taxes on Canadian operations for the years 1988 to 1991 wcre reassessed by the

Canadian rax authorities. Most of the additional taxes and interest relate ro transfer pricing issues and
are recoverable in other countries. Existing provisions ar¢ adequate to cover any amounts not recoverable,



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements reoncinued)

(tn millions of US$, cxcept where indicated)

6. Joint Yentures

Alcan Aluminium Limited

The activirties of the Company’s major joint ventures ate the procurement and processing of raw
materials in Australia, Brazil and Guinea, as well as aluminum rolling operations in Germany and

the United Staces,

Alcan’s proportionare interest in all joint venrures is included in the consolidated financial statements.
Summarized financial information relating ro Alcan’s share of these joint ventures is provided below.

Because most of the activities of the Company’s joinr venrures relate to supplying the Company’s
other operations, rhe portion of the Company’s third-party revenues, and related costs and expenses,

conducted through joint ventures is insignificant.

1997 1996 1995
Financial position at December 31
Invenrorics $ 189 $ 159 $ 158
Property, planr and equipmenr — net 943 1,001 1,037
91}1& assers 6O 95 114
Iotal assets $1,192 S_l 255 $1,309
Short-term debt $ 38 s 17 $ 15
Debt nor maturing wichin one year 100 106 102
Orther liabiliries 156 ) 152 145 _
Toral liabilities _ _ S 294 $ 275 $ 262_
Cash flow information for the year ended December 31
Cash from financing acrivitics $ 10 $§ 12 $ 18
Cash used for investment activities $ (78 $ (76) & (28)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{in millions of USS, except where indicated)

7. Investments

1997 1996 1995
Companies accounted for undet the equity method - $ 337 % 421§ o688
Orther investments — at cost, less amounts written off 6 7 7

$ 343 $ 428 § 69

The activities of the major equity-accounted companivs are divetsified aluminum operations in Japan
and India. On December 31, 1997, the quoted market value of the Company’s investments in Nippon
Light Metal Company, Lid. (NLM) and Indian Aluminium Company, Limited (Indal) exceeds their
book value by $36. Their combined results of operations and financial position are included in the
summary below. In the third quarter of 1997, the Company recorded a special after-tax charge of $30,
included in equity loss, reflecting the Company’s share of construction contract losses and resrrucruring
provisions in NLM. The 1996 information for NLM excludes, from the date of acquisition, the interesr
in those subsidiaries acquired by the Company from NI.M as a resulr of the restructuring of the
Company'’s holdings in Asia, explained in note 9.

1997 1996 1995
Results of operations for the year ended December 31
Revenues $ 5,572 % 6,483 % 7,896
Costs and expenses 5,622 6,457 7,816
Income (Loss) before income taxes {(50) 26 80
Income taxes 35 65 34
Net income (Loss) $ @85 § (39 3% (4)
Alcan’s share of Net income (Loss) $ (33 & (100 % (3
Dividends reccived by Alcan $ 6 3 11 3 9
Financial position at December 31
Current assets $ 2,600 §$ 3013 § 3842
Currenc liabilities 2,519 2,735 3,438
Working capiral 81 278 404
Property, plant and equipment — net 1,737 1.916 2,347
Other assets — net 335 261 153

2,153 2,455 2,904
Debt not maturing within onc year 1,376 1,422 1,351
Ner assets $ 777 % 1,033 $ 1,553
Alcan’s ¢quity in net assers $ 337 % 421 § 688

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

1997 1996 1995
Cost
Land and property rights $ 219 § 236 & 2147
Buildings, machinery and equipment 10,914 10,886 11,201
Construction work in progress 582 395 287

$11,715  $11,517  $11,735

Accumulated depreciation relates primarily to Buildings, machinery and equipment.

Capiral expendirures for maintaining the productive capacity of the Company’s existing assets are
estimated ac $450 to $300 per year. In addition, the Company expects to spend approximately $150
in 1998 on the continuaton of its rolling mill expansion in Brazil.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(in milfions of USS, except where indicated)

9, Restructuring of Holdings in Asia

In the third quarter of 1996, the Company sold its equity-accounted investment in Toyo Aluminium
K.K. (Toyal} to the Company’s Japanese affiliate, Nippon Light Metal Company, Led. {(NLM), for cash
proceeds of $207. The afier-tax gain of $128, including deferred translarion adjustments, on this sale
was deferred. Approximartcly one half of the gain is being recognized over the period related to the
utilization of the underlying assets by Toyal, while the remainder will be recognized if certain non-
depreciable assets are sold by Toyal. In 1997, $7 of the gain was recognized ($3 in 1996).

In November 1996, the Company and NLM created a new company, Alcan Nikkei Asia Holdings Lid.
(ANAH), owned 60% by Alcan and 40% by NLM. In exchange for shares in ANAH, the Company
conrributed a portion of its holdings in NLM while NLM contributed its sharcholdings in a number
of companics located in Malaysia, Thailand and China. The Company’s effective ownership of ANAH,
including the interests held through NLM, is 78.2% and the minority interest in ANAH’s subsidiaries
is presenred on this basis.

As a result of this transaction, Alcan’s effective ownership in NILM fell from 47.4% o 45.6%. The gain
on the pardal sale of the Company’s investment in NLM was deferred and is being recognized over the
period related to the utilizarion or disposition of the underlying assets by ANAH's subsidiaries. In 1997,
$1 of the after-tax gain was recognized.

Included in the Company’s balance sheet at the date of acquisition in 1996 were the following assets
and liabilities of ANAH’Ss Asian subsidiarics:

Working capiral % 49
Property, plant and equipment 99
Other assers — net 9

157
Long-term debr 4
Minoriry interest 71
Net assets $ 82

10. Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

Deferred credits and other liabilities comprise the following elements:

1997 1996 1995
Deferred revenues $ 36 $ 74 $ 87
Deferred profit on sale of investments 106 113 —
Post-retirement and posr-employment benefics 390 405 426
Environmental liabilities 37 32 38
Rationalization costs 32 31 27
Claims 40 39 41
Other o B 76 82

$715 §$770 $701
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11. Debt Not Maturing Within Qne Year

1997 1996 1995
Alcan Aluminium Limited
Deurschmark bank loans, duc 1998/2005 (DM381 million) {a) S 213 $ 231 $ 276
5.875% Debentures, due 2000 (b) 150 150 150
5.375% Swiss franc bonds, due 2003 () 123 132 154
CARIFA loan, due 20006 (d) 60 (0 GO
9.5% Debencures, due 2010 (o) 100 100 100
9.625% Sinking fund debentures, due 2000/2019 (2) 150 150 150
8.875% Debentures, due 2022 (F) 130 150 150
Ocher debr, due 2001 7 8 8
12.45% Canadian dellar debenrures, due 1997 {c)g) — — 92
9.1% Debentures, due 1998 (g) — —_ 125
9.2% Debenrures, due 2001 (g) — — —
Alcan Aluminum Corporation
7.25% Debentures, due 1999 (h) 100 100 100
Orther debr, due 199872004 3 ) G
6.373% Debentures, due 1997 (g)(h) — — 150
British Alcan Aluminium pic and subsidiary companies
Orcher debr _ 7 _
Bank loans — — 54
Alcan Deurschland GmbH and subsidiary companics
6.78% Bank loans — 2 4
5.65% Bank loans, due 2001 (DM15 million) 8 10 11
Bank loans, due 2000/2001 (DM 101 million) (a) 56 65 38
Queensiand Alumina Limited
Bank loans, duce 2000/2003 (a) 79 71 67
Other companies
Bank loans, due 199872011 {a) 51 48 48
4% Eurodollar exchangeable debentures, due 2003 (i) 24 24 24
Orther debr, due 2002/2036 3 4 6
1,277 1,338 1,773
Debt maturing within one year included in current labilities {36) {19) (28)

$1.241  $1.319  $1,745

{a) Interest rates fluctuate principally with the lender’s prime commercial rate, the commercial bank
bill rate, or are tied to LIBOR rares.

(b} Through an interest rate swap the Company had effectively converted the intercse on the
debentures to a rate tied to ULS. LIBOR for the period to October 1996,

{c) The Canadian dollar debentures were issued as CANS125 million and the Swiss franc bonds as
SEr178 million. Both debes were swapped for $107 and $103 ac effective interest rares of 9.82%
and 8.98%, respectively.

(d) The Caribbean Basin Projeces Financing Authority {CARIFA} loan bears interest ar a rate refated
o U.S. LIBOR, The interest was swapped nrail April 1996 for a fixed rate of 6.74%.
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11. Debt Not Maturing Within One Year (cont’d)

(e}

The Company can redeem the 9.5% debentures benween the vears 2000 and 2007 ar amounts
declining from 104% o 100% of the principal and can redeem the 9.625% debentures berween
the years 1999 and 2009 at amounts declining from 105% 1o 100% of the principal. In certain
circumstances prior o January 30, 2000, for the 9.5% debenrures, or prior to July 30, 1999, for
the 9.625% debentures, the holders may rerrace the dehentures ar 100%.

{f) The interest was swapped undl 1995 at a rate tied 1o U.S. LIBOR, The Company has the right to

(g

i)

redeemn the debentures during the years 2002 to 2012 at amounts declining from 104% ro 100%
of the principal amount,

The Canadian dollar 12.45% debentures due 1997, the 9.1% debentures due 1998, the 9.2%
debentures due 2001 {callable in 1998) and the 6.375% debentures due 1997 were cftecrively
exringuished in February 19906, February 1996, December 1995 and Seprember 1996, respectively,
through transactions whereby the Company placed government securities in trusts, the sole purpose
of which was to fund the repaymenr of the debentures and related interes.

The following is summarized consolidated financial information for Alcan Aluminum Corporation,
a wholly-owned subsidiary which consolidates virtually all of the Company’s operations in the
Unired Staces:

1997 1996 1995
Results of operations for the year ended December 31
Revenues $3,624 $3,389 $3,937
Costs and expenses _ 3,438 3,242 3,708
[ncome hefore income taxes 186 147 229
Income taxes ) 81 55 ) 86_
Net income $ 105 $ 92 $ 143
Financial position at December 31
Currenst assers S 801 § 868 5 615
Current l_iabilitics _ 376 578 353
Working capiral 425 290 262
Property, plant and equipment — net 736 756 795
cher liabilities — net (199} (lSC_w_) (lﬁ

962 860 919

Debt not maturing within one year 4 02 o5 256
Ner asscts $ 860 5 755 $ 0663

The above figures are prepared using the accounting principles followed by the Company (see note 2),
axcept thar inventories have heen valued principally by the lase-in, first-out (LIFO) metchod.

Results of operations in 1995 included nert after-rax gains on disposals of businesses of $24.

Debenture holders are enritled o receive at their aption 1,772 common shares held by the Company
in NLM, a related company, in exchange for each ten thousand dollar principal amount of deben-
tures. The Company can redeem the debentures berween che years 1998 and 1999 ar amounrs
declining from 100.5% to 100% of the principal.

The Company has swapped, to 1998, the interest payments on $100 of its floating rare debt in exchange
for fixed interesr payments.

Based on rates of exchange at year-end, debr repayment requirements over the nexr five years amount
to $36in 1998, §128 in 1999, $216 in 2000, $102 in 2001 and $79 in 2002.
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12. Preference Shares

AUTHORIZED:

An unlimited number of Preference Shares issuable in series. All shares are without nominal or par value.

AUTHORIZED AND QUTSTANDING:
In cach of the years 1997, 1996 and 1995, there were authorized and outstanding 3,700,000 series C,
1,700.000 series D, and 3,000,000 scries E, redeemable non-retractable preference shares with stated
values of $106, $43 and $34, respeetively.
The 300 series G redeemable non-retractable preference shares with srared value of $150, authorized
and ourstanding rhroughour 1993, were redeemed in August 1990,
Cutstanding shares are cligible for quarterly dividends as follows:
- Preference, series C, D and E — An amount related to the average of the Canadian prime inrerest
rates for series Cand E, and the average of the ULS. prime interest rates for series [, quored by
two major Canadian banks for stated periods.

Ouwsranding shares may be called for redemption ar the option of the Company on 30 days notice
as follows:

— Preference, series C and E {(denominated in Canadian dollars) and D {(denominated in
U8, dollars) — At $25.00 per share.

Any partial redemption must be made on a pro rawa basis or by lot.

13. Common Shares

The autherized common share capiral is an unlimired number of common shares without nominal or
par value. Changes in outstanding common shares are summarized below:

Number (in thousands) Stated Value
1997 199G 1995 1997 1996 1995
Outstanding —
beginning of year 226,620 225913 224,683 $1.233 51,219 $1,195
Issued for cash:
Exceutive share option plan 550 549 1,039 11 11 18
Dividend reinvestment and
share purchase plans 174 158 189 5 5 6

Outstanding — end of year 227,344 226,620 225,913 $1.251 $1,235 $1,219

Under the execurive share option plan, certain employees may purchase common shares at market value
on the effective date of the granc of each option. The average price of the shares covered by the
outstanding oprions is CAN$38.04 per share. These options vest gencrally over a period of four years
from the granc dare and expire at various dates during the next [0 years. Changes in the number of
shares under oprion are summarized below:

Number (in thousands)

1997 1996 1995
Outsranding - beginning of vear 3715 3473 3,934
Granted 1,100 853 752
Exercised (330) (549) (1,039}
Cancelled (72) {(62) (174)
Outstanding — end of year 4,193 3715 3,473

At December 31, 1997, the Company had reserved for issue under rhe executive share option plan
19,401,061 shares.
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13. Common Shares {cont’d)

The Company does not recognize compensation expense for options granted under the executive

share option plan. If the Company had ¢lected to recognize compensation expense for these options in
accordance with the methodology prescribed by Statement No. 123 of the U.S. Financial Accounting
Standards Board, nct income would have been lower by $10, or $0.04 per share, {$8, or $0.04 per share
in 1996 and §7, or $0.03 per share, in 19935).

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

In 1990, sharcholders approved a plan whereby each common share of the Company carrics one right to
purchase additional common shares. The plan, with certain amendments, was reconfirmed ar the 1995
Annual Meeting. The rights under the plan are nor currently exercisable but may become so upon the
acquisition by a person or group of affiliated or associared persons (“Acquiring Person”) of benelicial
ownership of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding voting shares or upon the commencement of

a takeover bid, Holders of rights, with the exceprion of an Acquiring Person, in such circumstances will
he entitled to purchase from che Company, upon paymenr of the exercise price {currently $100.00),
such number of additional common shares as can be purchased for owice the exercise price based on
the market value of the Company’s common shares at the time the rights become exercisable.

The plan has a permitted bid tearure which allows a takeover bid to proceed without the righes under
the plan becoming exercisable, provided that it meets certain minimum specificd standards of fairness
and disclosure, even if the Board does not supporr the bid.

The rights expire in 1999, but may be redeemncd carlier by the Board, with the prior consent of the
holders of rights or common shares, for 1 cent per right. In addition, should a person or group of
persons acquire outsranding voting shares pursuant o a permitted bid or a share acquisition in respect
of which rhe Board has waived the application of the plan, the Board shall be deemed to have elecred
to redeem the righes at 1 cent per righe.

14, Retained Earnings

Consolidared retained carnings at December 31, 1997, includes $138 of undistributed carnings of
companies accounred for under the equity method and $2,124 of undistributed carnings of subsidiaries
and joint ventures, some part of which may be subject to certain raxes and other restrictions on
distribution to the parenr company; no provision is made for such raxes because these earnings are
reinvested in rhe business.

15. Currency Gains and Losses

The following are the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

1997 1996 1995
Currency gains (losses) excluding realized
deferred translarion adjustments:
Forward exchange contracts and currency options $ 22 $ 40 3 (56)
Other - 1 (4} )]

$ 23 § 36 $(57)

Deferred translation adjustments:

Balance — beginning of year $ 209 $ 304 $292
Effecr of exchange rate changes (143) (94) 12
Gains rca__l__i'(zcd . _ ) (2) (- —
Balance — end of year 5 64 $209 $304
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16. Financial Instruments and Commodity Contracts

In conducting its business, the Company uses various instruments, including forward contracts and
options, to manage rhe risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and aluminum
prices. All such instruments are used for risk management purposcs only.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CURRENCY

The Company secks to manage the risks arising from movemcents in exchange rates on identifiable firm
cost commitments {principally Canadian dollar} and certain foreign currency denominated revenues,
A combination of forward exchange contracrs and options, coveting periods of up to three years, are
used o manage thesc risks.

At December 31, 1997, the contracr amount of forward exchange contracts outstanding used to hedge
future firm cost commitments was $1,296 ($1,791 in 1996 and $2,017 in 1995) whilc the contract
amount of purchased options (range forward contracts) outstanding used ro hedge future firm cost
commitments was $1,512 {$614 in 1996 and $550 in 1995}. At December 31, 1997, the conrract
amount of outstanding forward exchange contracts used to hedge future revenues was $268 ($387

in 1996 and $256 in 1995).

The market value of ourstanding forward exchange concraces relared 1o hedges of costs or revenues at
December 31, 1997, was such thar if these contracts had been closed our, the Company would have
paid $24 (received $17 in 1996 and received $37 in 1995). Based on prevailing market prices, if the
currency option contracts (range forward contracts) had been closed out on December 31, 1997, the
Company would have paid 336 {received $1 in 1996 and paid $2 in 1993). Unrealized gains and
losses on oursranding forward contracts and options are not recorded in the financial statements until
matutity of the underlying transactions.

In addition, certain intercompany forcign currency denominated loans are hedged through the use

of forward exchange concracts. At December 31, 1997, the contract amount of such forward contracts
was $220 ($231 in 1996 and $236 in 1995) and the marker value was such that if these contracts had
been closed out, the Company would have received $16 (received $2 in 1996 and received $4 in 1995)

Included in Deferred charges and other assets was an amount of $2 in 1996 and $3 in 1995 consisting
of net losses an terminated forward exchange contracts and options used to hedge future costs. These
deferred charges were included in Cost of sales and operating expenses at the same time as the underlying
transactions being hedged were recognized.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — DEBT NOT MATURING WITHIN ONE YEAR

As explained in note 11, the 5.375% Swiss franc bonds of principal amounr SFr178 have been swapped
for $105 ac an effuctive interest rate of 8.98%. 1f the swap had been closed out at December 31, 1997,
the Company would have received a net amount of $15 ($32 in 1996 and $47 in 1995) of which an
amount of $18 related to the swap of the principal ($27 in 1996 and $49 in 1995) has been recorded
in Deferred charges and other assets.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — INTEREST RATES

As stated in note £, the Company sometimes enters into interest rate swaps to manage funding costs as
well as che voladlity of interest rates. Net cash flows related to swaps are recorded in Incerest
concurrently with the interest expense on the underlying debr.

Changes in the fair value of the interesr rare swaps are not recognized on a mark to market basis since
these relate specifically to interest costs on identifiable debr.

If all interest rate swap agrecments had been closed out on December 31, 1997, the Company would
have paid $2 ($6 in 1996 and 312 in 1995}, based on prevailing interest rates.
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16. Financial Instruments and Commodity Contracts (cont'd)

COMMOOITY CONTRACTS — METAL

Depending on supply and market condidons, as well as for logistical reasons, the Company may
sell primary meral 1o third partics and may purchase primary and secondary aluminum on the open
market to meet its fabricated products requitements. In addition, the Company may hedge certain
commitments arising {rom pricing arrangements with some of its customers.

Through the use of forward purchase and sales coutraces and options, the Company secks to limir che
negative impact of low metal prices whilst retaining most of the benefit from higher metal prices.

At December 31, 1997, the Company had outstanding forward purchase contracts covering 418,800
tonnes (474,300 tonnes in 1996 and 472,400 woones at December 31, 1995}, maturing at various
dates in 1998, 1999 and 2000 (1997, 1998 arrd 1999 at December 31, 1996 and 1996 and 1997

at December 31, 1995). In addirion, the Company held call options outstanding for 657,800 tonnes
{591,300 ronnes at December 31, 1996 and 146.500 tonnes at December 31, 1995) marturing at
various dates in 1998 and 1999 (1997 and 1998 at December 31, 1996 and 1996 and 1997 at
Decembher 31, 1993),

At Diecember 31, 1997, the Company held put oprions, maturing in 1998 and 1999, which establish
a minimum price for the metal component of 60,000 tonnes of the Company’s future sales.

Included in Receivables or Deferred charges and other assets s $33 (825 in 1996 and $7 in 1995)
representing the net cost of outstanding options,

The oprion premiums paid and received, rogether with the realized gains or losses on the contracts,
are included in Sales and operaring revenues or Cost of sales and operaring expenses, as applicable,
concurrently with recognition of the undetlying items being hedged,

Based on meral prices prevailing on December 31, 1997, if all commodity forward purchase contracts

and options had been closed out, the Company would have paid $9 (teceived $20 in 1996 and received

$5in 1993).

COUNTERPARTY RISK

As exchange rates, inzerest rates and metal prices fluctuate, the above contracts will generate gains and
losses that will he offser by changes in the value of the underlying irems being hedged. The Company
may be exposed to losses in the future if the counterpartices to the above conrraces fail o perform.
However, the Company is satisfied that the risk of such non-performance is remote, due o its controls
on credit exposures.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — MARKET VALUE

On December 31, 1997, the fair value of the Company’s long-term debr wotalling $1,277 {81,338 in
1996 and $1.773 in 1993) was $1,321 ($1,363 tn 1996 and $1,868 in 1993), based on markert prices

for the Company’s fixed rate securities and the book value of variahle rate debr.

The marker values of all other financial assets and liabilities and preference shares are approximarcly
equal to their carrying values,
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17. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has guaranteed the repayment of approximately $10 of indebtedness by third parties.
Alcan believes that none of these guarantees is likely to be invoked. Commitments wich third partics
and certain related companies for supplies of goods and services are estimated at $52 in 1998, $41 in
1999, $26 in 2000, $23 in 2001, $23 in 2002, and $99 thereafter. Total fixed charges from these
enrities were $9 in 1997, $14 in 1996 and $62 in 1995.

Minimum rental obligations ate estimated ar $35 in 1998, $52 in 1999, $27 in 2000, $16 in 2001,
$16 in 2002 and $26 thereafter. Total rental expenses amounted to $70 in 1997, $80 in 1996 and
$94 in 1995.

Alcan, in the course of its operations, 1s subject to unvironmental and other claims, lawsuits and
contingencics. Accruals have been made in specific instances where it is probable thar liabilirics will be
incurred and where such liabilities can be reasonably estimated. Although it is possible that liabilities
may arise in other instances for which no accruals have been made, the Company does nort believe that
such an outcome will significantly impair its operations or have a material adverse effect on its financial
position.

In addition, see reference to income taxes in nore 5, capital expenditures in note 8, debt repayments in
note 11, and financial insttuments and commodicy contracis in note 16.

18. Supplementary Information

1997 1996 1995

Income statement
Interest on long-rerm debt 3 91 $109 $175
Capitalized interest {2) — (2)
Balance sheet
Payables

Accrued employmenc costs $170 $ 167 5150
Short-term borrowings (principally from banks) 238 178 212

At December 31, 1997, the weighred average interesr raw on short-term borrowings was 5.3% (4.8% in
1996 and 7.3% in 1995).
Statement of cash flows

Intcrest paid $101 $133 $218
Income taxes paid 261 214 71

All time deposits qualify as cash equivalents.
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19. Post-Retirement Benefits

PENSION PLANS

Alcan and its subsidiaries have established pension plans in the principal countrics where they operate,
for the greater part contriburory and generally open ro all employees. Most plans provide pension
benefirs char are based on the employee’s highest average eligible compensation during any consecutive
36-month period before retirement. Plan assets consist primarily of listed stocks and bonds.

Alcan’s funding policy is to contribute the amount required to provide for benefics ateributed to service
to dare, with projection of salaries to retirement, and to amortize unfunded acruarial liabilities for the
most part over periods of 15 years or less.

1997 1996 1995

Service cost for the year 5 73 $ 069 5 76
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 231 225 215
Acrnal rerurn on assers (607) (509) (483)
Variance of actual return from expected long-term rate

of 7.3% (7.3% in 1996 and 7.5% in 1995) being deferred,

and amortizarion of gains and losses and of prior service costs 327 241 o221
Net cost for the year $ 24 $ 30 $ 29

Included in the net cost for .1996‘;1:3 5§oféc—ttltmn—m ga‘iﬂn:s (516 it?199§ancﬁ22 ofcurtailm?m o
losses ($1 in 1995) related 10 the disposal of certain businesses.

The plans’ funded status at December 31 was:
Actuarial accumuiated bencfit obligation,
which is substandally vested* $3.156 3,136 $2,818

Plan assets at marker value $4,231 33,986 $3,447
Actuarial projected benefir obligation based on average

compensation growch of 4.9% {4.9% in 1996 and

4.8% in 1995) and discountr rate of 6.8%

(7.2% in 1996 and 7.1% in 1995)

o

L]

3,550 3506 3210

Plan assets in excess of projecrccﬁ)cncﬁ[ oblgation - 681 480 237
Unamortized actuarial gains — nec** (943) (779) (495)
Unamortized prior service cost™™ 276 313 287
Unamortized portion of net surplus at January 1, 1936** {48) 7D (93}
Net pension liability in balance sheet $ B4) & 57 0§ (64)

* Includes commitments for whickh the actuarial aceumulaced benefir obligation excecds plan assets by $135 in 1997
($147 in 1996 and S108 in 1993). These bave beew fully provided in the Companys accounts (see note 10).

** Being amortized over expected average vemaining service of emplayees, generally 15 years.
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19. Post-Retirement Benefits (cont'd)

OTHER

The Company provides life insurance benefits under some of its reticement plans. Certain carly
retirement arrangements also provide for medical benefits, generally only until the age of 65. These
plans are not funded.

1997 1996 1995
Service cost for the year $ 4 $ 4 $ 4
Interest cost on accumulated benefit obligation 12 12 13
Amortization of gains and losses (6) (3 (15)
Total cost for the year $ 10 $ 11 § 2

Included in the toral cost for 1996 is $1 of curtailment gains {($12 in 19953) related ro the disposal of
certain businesses,

Accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) based on average compensation growth of 4.9% (5.2% in 1996
and 5.2% in 1995) and discount race of 6.7% {(7.0% in 1996 and 7.09% in 1995):

Active employees

— not fully cligible $ 58 $ 61 $ 66
— fully eligible 28 29 28
Retired employees 86 88 97
Total ABO 172 178 191
Unamortized gains — net 31 24 11
ABO in balance sheet $203 %202 $202

The assumed health care cost trend rare used in calculating the ABQ was 8.5% in 1997 (8.5% in 1996
and 11% in 1995), decreasing gradually 10 4.5% (5.0% in 1996 and 5.0% in 1995) in 2000. If the
average of such rate was increased by 1%, the ABO would increase by approximarely $8 and the
periodic cost of post-retirement benefits other than pensions would increasc by approximately $1

per year.
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20. Information by Geographic Areas

Alcan Aluminium Limited

Location 1997 199G 1995
Sales and operating Canada $1,926 52,169 $2,740
revenucs — subsidiaries Unired States 541 499 552
Sourh America 41 25 41
Europe 226 216 222
Asia and Pacific 68 78 96
All other 350 349 338
Sub-rotal 3,152 3,330 3,989
Consolidation climinations (3,152} (3,330) (3,989
Toal § — § — 5 —
Sales to subsidiary companies are made at fair market prices recogniving
volume, continuity of supply and other factors.
Sales and operating Canada $1,169 $1,210 $1,258
revenues — third parties United States 3,063 2,871 3,300
South America 395 579 719
Europe 2,609 2,633 3,632
Asia and Pacific 515 290 326
All other 26 31 46
Tortal $7.777 $7.614 $9,287
Net income* Canada % 245 $ 175 $ 216
United States 136 70 123
South America 27 42 15
Europe 55 21 161
Asia and Pacific {1) 13 43
All other 35 31 39
Consolidation eliminations (29) 58 (54}
Nert income before
extraordinary item 468 410 543
Extraordinary gain (loss)
— Canada 17 — {280)
Total $ 485 $ 410 $ 263
Toral assets Canada $4,077 $4,159 $4,033
at December 31 United States 1,848 1,820 1,679
South America 729 739 854
Europe 3,162 3,189 3,520
Asia and Pacific 833 983 1,078
All other 498 477 463
Consolidation eliminations {1,681} (2,042} {1,891}
Toral $9,466 $9,325 $9,736
Capital expenditures Canada $ 186 $ 143 $§ 099
and investments United States 71 55 63
South America 118 43 45
Europe 206 185 196
Asia and Pacific 21 7 3
All other 39 49 35
Total S 641 S 482 $ 441
Average number Canada 11 11 11
of employees United States 4 4 4
(in thewsands) South America 3 4 6
Europe 11 12 15
Asia and Pacific 2 1 —
All ocher 2 2 3
Toral 33 34 39

" If presened to reflect the offect of prior years' income tax reqssessmenis described in nare 3. net income i Canada in 1997
would be reduced by 8109 and increased by $93 in the United States and $16 in Eurgpe.
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21, Information by Product Sectors

The following presents selected information by major product secror, viewed on a stand-alone basis.
Transactions between product sectors are conducted on an arm’s length basis and reflect market prices.
Thus, profit on all alumina produced by the Company, whether sold to third partics or used in the
Company’s smelters, is included in the raw marcrials and chemicals sector. Similarly, income from
primary metal operations is mainly profit on metal produced by the Company, whether sold to third
parties or used in the Company’s fabricaung operations. Income from fabricated products businesses
represents only the fabricating profit on rolled products and downstream businesses.

The information presented below is consistent with recently approved accounting standards in Canada
and the U.S. thar take effecc in 1998 and deal with segmented information. The Company will adopt

all provisions of the new standards in 1998.

Sales and opcratin_g revenucs

Operating income

Intersector Third parties
1997 1996 1995 1997 1996 1995 1997 1996 1995

Raw martcrials

andchemicals § 520 § 507 $ 555 $ 536 $ 529 § 618 % 125 % 95 § 203
Primary metal 1,530 1,653 2,286 1,531 1,472 1,612 589 519 701
Fabricated products — — — 5693 5593 6983 290 127 346
Intersector and

other items (2,050) (2,160) (2.841) 17 20 74 (18) 147 {49

$ — § — & — $7777 $76l4 $9287 $ 986 3§ 888 $1.201

Reconeiliation to net income

before extraordinary item
Equity loss (33) (10) (3)
Corporate offices (126) (117) (111)
Interest (101) (125) (204)
Income taxes (258) (226) (340)

Net income before extraordinary item

$ 468 & 410 § 543

Total Assets at December 31 1997 1996 1995
Raw marerials and chemicals $1,409 $1,357 $1354
Primary meral 2,880 2795 2971
Fabricated products 4,318 4,198 4,737
Qash;eq'uiry cnmmpieq and mhc_r irems o - o 859 975 (74

$9.466 $9325 $9,736

22. Subsequent Event

On February 19, 1998, the Company announced it was proceeding wirh the construction of a
375,000-tonne smelter at Alma, Quebec. Toral cost is estimared at $1,600, most of which will

be incurred over the next three years. Approximately $220 is expecied to be spent in 1998.
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Quarterly Financial Data

(in millions of USS, excepr where indicaied)

(naudited) First Second Third Fourth Year
1997

Revenues $1,898 $£2,030 $ 1,965 £1,972 $ 7,865
Cost of sales and operating expenses 1,450 1,552 1,504 1,489 5,995
Depreciation 107 110 106 113 436
Income taxcs 45 72 78 63 258
Other 1tems 153 180 197 178 708
Net income before exeraordinary item 143 116 80 129 468
Extraordinary gain — - = 17 17
Net income'" $ 143 $ 116 $§ 80 $ 146 $ 485
Dividends on preference shares 3 2 2 3 10
Net incomie attriburable ro common sharcholders $ 140 $ 114 $ 78 $ 143 S 475

Net income before extraordinary item
per common share (in 1587 $ 050 S 0.34 $ 056 s 2.02
Extraordinary gain per common share fin US$) — — — 0.07 0.07

0
<
o
)

Net income per common share (i U512 $ 062 $ 050 S 034 § 063 $ 209
Net income before extraordinary item under ULS. GAAPW® $ I42 $ 141 § 90 $ 131 5 504
Net income under U.S. GAAP® $ 142 $ 141 $ 90 $ 148 $ 521
1996

Revennes $ 2,015 $1,972 $ 1,881 $ 1,821 $ 7,689
Cost of sales and operating expenses 1,528 1,501 1,460 1.416 5,905
Depreciation 1o 108 108 105 431
Income taxes 69 74 57 26 226
Ocher items 183 177 155 202 717
Net incomet! g 125 § 112 & 101 $ 72 $ 410
Dividends on preference shares o 5 5 4 2 16
Net incomic attributable to common shareholders $ 120 § 107 s 97 5 70 £ 394
Net income per common share 7z L5 /4 $ 0.53 $ 047 S 0.43 $ 0.31 $ 1.74
Net income under U.S. GAAP® $ 120 $ 118 g 111 £ 71 $ 420
1995

Revenucs $ 2,455 $ 2,449 $ 2,288 $2,195 $ 9,387
Cost of sales and operating expenses 1,874 1,843 1,750 1,766 7,233
Depreciation 109 113 115 110 447
[ncomie taxes 102 99 86 53 340
Other items 196 214 194 220 824
Net income before extraordinary item 174 180 143 46 543
Extraordinary loss — — 280 — 280
Net income (Loss) $ 174 5 180 $ (137 § 46 % 263
Dividends on preference shares 6 6 3 7 24
Net income (Loss) arrributable to common sharcholders § 168 $ 174 $ (142 § 39 $ 239

Net income before extraordinary item
per common share (1n LSsi 0.75 5 0.77 $ 0.61 $ 0.17 $ 2.30
Extraordinary loss per common share (in {J55) — — 1.24 — 1.24

o
5

Net income (Loss) per common share (in US5)% § 075 $ 077 3 (0.63). $ 0.17 $ 1.06
Net income hefore extraordinary item under U.S. GAAP®! § 176 % 172§ 119 5 94 $ 561
Net income (Loss) under U.S. GAAPD % 176 § 172 $ (176) § 94 5 266

Y he ﬁn{ quarter af 1997 included an zzﬁc‘r‘m.r ga‘in Gf 10 ﬁ’r)m the aly gf a busingss and 820 ﬁ'gm rzﬁwour.'zb/e ree (zdjz.',cnm‘u{ related tn prior
years, The third quarter of 1997 included @ special charge of 330 after wux related to Alcant share of contract losses and restructuring provisions at
45.6% ormed Nippon Light Metal Compan, Lid., in Japan.

The first quarter of 1996 included an affer-tax charge of §12 on the in-substance defiasance of debensures. The third quarter of 1996 included an
after-tax gain of S8 from the sale uf businesses.

Vhe first quarcer of 1995 included an affce-tax gain of $24 from the sale of Alcan’s metal distribution business in the U.S. Vhe second, ihird and
forreh quarters of 1995 inclided aficr-tax charges of 33, 34 and $8 respecitvely on the in-substance defeasance of debensures,

4 Net income (Loss) per common share calvulations are based on the average number of conmon shares outstanding in cacl period.

3 See note 4 o the conselidated financial stateyenis for r*xplrzmzﬁan of differences between Canadian and 1.5, GAAR
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Eleven-Year Summary

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989 1988 1987
Consolidated Income Statement Items (in millions of USS)
Revenues
Sales and operating revenues 7,777 7,614 9,287 8,216 7,232 7,596 7,748 8,757 8,839 8,529 6,797
Other income 88 75 100 109 75 69 82 162 208 97 81
Toral revenues 7,865 7,689 9,387 8,325 7,307 7,665 7,830 8,919 9,047 8,626 6,878
Costs and expenses
Cost of sales and operating expenses 5,995 5,905 7,233 6,740 6,002 6,300 6,455 6,996 6,682 6,072 5,117
Depreciation 436 43) 447 431 443 449 429 393 333 316 296
Selling, administrative and general expenses 444 422 484 528 551 596 635 659 600 525 447
Research and development expenses 72 71 76 72 929 125 131 150 136 132 95
Interest 101 125 204 219 212 254 246 197 130 137 177
Other expenses 54 88 61 95 106 118 163 65 62 91 113
Income taxes 258 226 340 112 (13) (17) (104) 126 350 497 230
Equity income (loss) (33) (10) (3) (29) (12) 53 89 211 97 97 35
Minority interests (4) (1) 4 (3) 1 (5) — (1) (16) (22) (5)
Net income (Loss) before extraordinary item 468 410 543 96 (104) (112) (36) 543 835 931 433
Extraordinary gain (loss) 17 — (280) — — — — — — — —
Net income (Loss) 485 410 263 96 (104) (112) (36) 543 835 931 433
Preference dividends 10 16 24 21 18 23 20 22 21 30 36
Net income (Loss) attributable to common sharcholders 475 394 239 75 (122) (135) (56) 521 814 901 397
Consolidated Balance Sheet Items (in millions of USS)
Operating working capital 1,483 1,461 1,731 1,675 1,314 1,460 1,717 1,842 1,774 1,764 1,735
Property, plant and equipment — net 5,458 5,470 5,672 5,534 6,005 6,256 6,525 6,167 5,260 4,280 3,965
“Total assets 9,466 9,325 9,736 10,003 9,812 10,154 10,843 10,681 9,518 8,627 7,693
Total debt 1,515 1,516 1,985 2,485 2,652 2,794 3,024 2,648 1,734 1,530 1,558
Deferred income taxes 969 996 979 914 888 955 1,126 1,092 1,044 1,006 754
Preference shares 203 203 353 353 353 353 212 212 212 211 405
Common sharcholders’ equity 4,871 4,661 4,482 4,308 4,096 4,266 4,730 4,942 4,610 4,109 3,565
Per Common Share (in USS)
Net income (Loss) before extraordinary item 2.02 1.74 2.30 0.34 (0.54) (0.60) (0.25) 2.33 3.58 3.85 1.68
Net income (Loss) 2.09 1.74 1.06 0.34 (0.54) (0.60) (0.25) 2.33 3.58 3.85 1.68
Dividends pnid 0.60 0.60 0.45 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.86 1.12 1.12 0.59 0.39
Common sharcholders’ equity 21.43 20.57 19.84 19.17 18.28 19.06 21.17 22,19 20.30 18.06 15.05
Market price - NYSE close 27.69 33.63 31.13 25.38 20.75 17.63 20.00 19.50 22.88 21.75 17.92
Operating Data (in thousands of 1onnes)
Consolidated aluminum shipments
Ingot products* 858 810 801 897 887 870 866 857 743 832 787
Fabricated produc(s 1,694 1,539 1,733 1,763 1,560 1,389 1,333 1,488 1,518 1,446 1,410
Fabrication of customer-owned meral 276 258 225 189 91 206 145 81 75 80 99
Total aluminum shipments 2,828 2,607 2,759 2,849 2,538 2,465 2,344 2,426 2,336 2,358 2,296
Consolidated primary aluminum production 1,429 1,407 1,278 1,435 1,631 1,612 1,695 1,651 1,643 1,619 1,587
Consolidated aluminum purchases 1,254 1,003 1,365 1,350 865 675 591 646 718 716 593
Consolidated aluminum inventories (end of year) 451 408 449 435 403 418 463 447 539 480 496
Primary aluminum capacity**
Consolidated subsidiaries 1,558 1,561 1,561 1,561 1,711 1,711 1,676 1,685 1,685 1,680 1,680
Total consolidated subsidiaries and related companies 1,695 1,698 1,712 1,712 1,862 1,862 1,827 1,836 1,836 1,831 1,861
Other Statistics
Cash from operating activities (in millions of US$) 719 981 1,044 65 444 465 659 760 970 1,370 879
Capital expenditures (in millions of USS) 641 482 441 356 370 474 880 1,367 1,466 676 415
Ratio of toral borrowings to equity (%) 23:.77 23:77 29:71 35:65 37:63 37:63 37:63 33:67 26:74 26:74 27:73
Average number of employees (in thousands) 33 34 39 42 46 49 54 57 57 56 63
Common sharcholders — registered (in thousands at end of year) 21 22 23 26 28 32 34 38 40 41 46
Common shares outstanding (in millions at end of year) 227 227 226 225 224 224 223 223 227 228 237
Registered in Canada (%) 61 61 61 55 59 69 68 54 44 54 44
Registered in the United States (%) 39 39 38 44 40 30 31 44 54 43 53
Registered in other countries (%) —_ — 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3
Return on average common sharcholders cquity (%) 10 9 5 2 (3) (3) (n 11 19 24 12
Before extraordinary item (%) 10 11
* Includes primary and secondary ingot and scrap. All per-share amounss reflect the three-for-two share spliss on May S, 1987, and May 9, 1989.
** Primary aluminum capacity has been restated 1o reflect better the actual production levels achieved over a period of time. See note 4 10 the consolidated financial sustements for U.S. GAAP information.
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Corporate Governance

The business and affairs of Alcan are managed
by its Board of Dircetors acting through the
Management of the Company. The Directors
and Officers of Alcan are named on the opposite
page. In discharging its duties and obligarions,
the Alcan Board acts in accordance with the
provisions of the Canada Business Corporations
Act, the Company’s constituting documents
and by-laws and other applicable legislation
and Alcan policics.

Alcan does not have a controlling sharcholder
nor do any of the Directors represenrt the invest-
ment of any minority sharcholder.

Corporate governance has traditionally received
the active attention of Alcan’s Board. For instance,
an intensive review of the guiding principles of
Alcan conducted by the Board in the 1970s led
to the publication in 1978 of a policy statement
entitled Alcan, Its Purpose, Objectives and Policies,
which has remained fundamentally unchanged.
This statement represents the basic business
principles that guide Alcan employces in con-
ducting a widespread international enterprise
and has helped Alcan achieve public under-
standing and crust. To thar original document,
a Code of Conduct has been added to reinforce ir
with more detailed guidelines for Alcan employees
as well as consultants and contractors engaged
by Alcan.

The Montreal and Toronto stock exchanges
now require a formal description of corporate
governance practices by alt listed companies.
Alcan’s disclosure in this regard ts published
in the Management Proxy Circular issued

in connection with the forthcoming Annual
Meeting; a copy is available from Shareholder
Services at the address on page 65.

Committccs of the Board (described briefly
below) assist the Board in carrying our irs
functions and make recommendations to it
on various matters. Membership of thesc
Committees is indicated on the opposite page.

The Cotporate Governance Committee has
the responsibility for reviewing Board practices
and performance, candidates for directorship
and Board Committee membership. It also
considers reccommendations from the Personnel
Committee regarding Board compensation and
the appointments of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Execurtive Officer.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its functions relating to corporate
accounting and reporting practices as wefl

as financial and accounting controls, in order
to provide effective oversight of the financial
reporting process; it also reviews financial
sratements as well as proposals for issucs

of securiries.

The Environment Committee has the respon-
sibility for reviewing policy, management
practices and performance of Alcan in envi-
ronmental mateers,

The Personnel Committee has the respon-
sibility for reviewing all personnel policy and
employee relations matters (including com-
pensarion), and for making recommendations
to the Corporate Governance Commirtee on
Board compensation and on the appointments
of the Chairman of the Board and the Chicf
Executive Officer. All matters relating to the
Chief Executive Officer are dealt with by non-
executive members of the Committce.

A special commirtec composed of members
of the Personnel Commiteee, except the Chief
Executive Officer, administers the Alcan
Executive Share Option Plan.



Directors and Officers (dsar February 12, 1998)

DIRECTORS

Dr. John R. Evans, €.C.1/3.8
Chairman of the Board

of Alcan Aluminium Limiced,
Meoentreal

Age 68, direcror since 1986

Sonja . Bata, 0.C.57

Dhrector of Bara Limited,

Toronto

Age 71, divector since 1979

W. R. C. Blundell, 0.C.2-7

Director of various companies,
Toronto

Age 70, direcror since 1987

Jacques Bougie, 0.C.35

President and Chief Executive Officer
of Alcan Aluminium Limited,
Moncreal

Age 50, director since 1989

warren Chippindale, F.C.A., C.M."4%7
Director of various companics,
Monreeal

Age 69, divector since 1986

D. Travis Engen?-*7

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
of ITT Industries, Inc.,

New York

Age 33, director since 1996

Allan E. Gotlieb, C.C.%57

Director of various companies,
Toronto

Age 69, direcror since 1989

). E. Newall, 0.C.3-&7

Vice Chairman and Chief Execurtive Officer
of NOVA Corporarion,

Calgary

Age 62, director since 1985

Dr. Peter H. Pearse, C.M.>7

Presidenc of Pearse Ventures Limited,

Vancouver
Age 65, director since 1989

Sir George Russell, C.B.E." %7
Chairman of 31 Group ple,
London

Age 62, director since 1987

Guy Saint-Pierre, 0.C."7

Chairman of SNC-Lavalin Group Inc.,
Monrreai

Age 63, director since 1994

Gerhard Schulmeyer':?

President and Chief Executive Officer

of Siemens Nixdorf Informarionssysteme AG,
Munich

Age 59, director since 1996

OFFICERS

Jacques Bougie

President and Chief Exccutive Officer
Robert L. Ball

Executive Vice President,

Corporate Development and Technology
Claude Chamberland

Executive Vice President,

Smeiting and Power

Jean-Pierre M. Ergas

Executive Vice President,

Lurope

Richard B. Evans

Executive Vice President,
Fabricated Products — North America
Emery P. LeBlanc

Executive Vice Peesident,

Reaw Materials and Chemicals
Everaldo N. Santos

Execurive Vice President,

South Ameriea

Brian W, Sturgell

Executive Vice President,
Asta/Pactfic

Daniel Gagnier

Vice President, Corporate and
Environmental Affairs

Gaston Quellet

Vice President, Human Resources,
Occupational Health and Safery

P. K. Pal

Vice President, Chief Legal Officer
and Secretary

Suresh Thadhani

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Geoffrey P. Batt
Treasurer

Denis G, O'Brien
Controller

Alcan Aluminium Limited

T Member of Audit

Comisnitice

s o
< Chatrman of Awdit
Conimittee

? Mentber of Perconnel
Committee

Pt .
F Chairiman of Personnel
Commitee

3 Member of Enviranment
Comnrittes

& Clhairmean of Enviramment
Commitice

7/ Member of Corporaie

Governarnce Commitice

# Chairruan of Corporate
Governance Coramittee
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Sharehaglder Information

COMMON SHARES

The principal markees for trading in Alcan’s common

shares are the New York and 'Toronto stock exchanges.

The common shares are also rraded on the Montreal,
Vancouver, Chicago, Pacific, London, Paris, Brusscls,
Amsterdam, Frankfurt and Swiss stock exchanges.

The transfer agents for the common shares are CIBC
Mellon Trust Company in Montreal, Toronto,
Winnipeg, Regina, Calgary and Vancouver, Chase
Mellon Sharcholder Services, L.L.C. in New York,
and CIBC Mellon Trust Company in England.

Common share dividends are paid quarterly on

or about the 20th of March, June, Seprember and
December to sharcholders of record on or abour
the 20th of February, May, August and Novemher,
respectively.

PREFERENCE SHARES

The preference shares are listed on the Montreal,
Torento and Vancouver stock exchanges. The rransfer
agent for the preference shares is CIBC Mellon Trust
Company.

INVESTMENT PLANS

The Company offers holders of common shares

two convenient ways of buying additional Alean coin-
mon shares without payment of brokerage commissions.
These are known as the Dividend Reinvestment Plan
and the Share Purchase Plan. Copices of the prospectus
describing these Plans may be obtained from Sharcholder
Services at the address on page 65.

SECURITIES REPORTS FOR 1997

The Company's annual information form, to be filed
wirh the Canadian securities commissions, and the
annual 10-K report, to he fited wirh the Securitics and
Exchange Commission in the United States, will be
available to shareholders after April 1, 1998, Copies of
both may be obtained from Shareholder Services ac the
address on page 65.

Dividend Prices* and Average Daily Trading Volumes
New York Stock Exchange (U538} Toronto Stock Exchange (CANS)

1997 US$ High Low Close Avg. Daily High Low Close Avg, Daily
Quarter Volume Volume
First 0.150 38 Y4 3338 33 7/8 562,300 52.25 4570 46775 (641,900
Second 0.150 37 7/ 30'/2 34'Y16 430,900 32.10 42.65 47.10 587,800
Third 0.150 40 516 332 34 34 470,600 55.70  46.65 48.40 547,600
Fourth 0.150 356 2616 27 518 499,133 4925  37.10  39.40 679,694
Year 0.600
1996
Quarcer
First 0.150 337/s  28%s 324 398,500 46 3834 44 709,100
Second 0.150 34y 30'fs 3012 367,400 46.40 4075 4155 468,100
Third 0.150 323s  28%8 30 327,200 44.45  39.35  40.70 406,500
Fourth 0.150 3648 29%4 33578 435,200 48.50 40,10 46.25 664,500
Year 0.600

¢ The share prices ave those reporred as New York Stock Exchange — Consolidated Trading and roported by the Toronto Steck Fxchange.
Strce April 15, 1996, share prices on the Toronto Stock Exchange are expressed in decimals.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Contact for sharcholder account inquiries:

Linda Burton

Manager, Sharcholder Services
Telephone: (514) 848-8050
or 1-888-252-52206 (roli free)

sharcholder.services@alcan.com

[nvesror contact:

Alan G. Brown

Direcror, Investor and Media Relarions

Telephone: (514) 848-8368

investor.relations@alean.com

Media contact:
Alain Bergeron

Manager, Investor and Media Relations
Telephone: (314) 848-8232

media.relations@alcan.com

Printing Ine.

Printing: Ciuwb

Duudgn and production: TM detign communil



The Alcan Group Worldwide”

PARENT COMPANY AND WORLD
HEADQUARTERS

Alcan Aluminium Limited
1188 Sherbrooke Streer West
Montreal, Quebee, Canada
H3A 3G2

Mailing Address:

PO, Box 6090

Montreal, Quebec, Canada
H3C 3A7

Telephone: {314) 848-8000
Telecopier: (314) 848-8115

\\*\.\*\\'.3|C'J.11 Lom

NORTH AMERICA

Bermuda

Alcan (Bermuda) Limiced

Alcan Nikkei Asia Holdings Lid. {(78.294)!
Canada

Alcan Aluminium Limited

Alcan Cable

Alcan Chemicals

Alcan Foil Producrs

Alcan International Limited

Alcan Smelters and Chemicals Limired

Jamaica
Alcan Jamaica Company

United States

Alcan Aluminum Corporation
Alcan Autemortive Products
Alcan Cable

Alcan Chemicals

Alcan Foil Producrs

Alcan Ingot

Alcan Light Gauge Products
Alcan Sheer Producrs

SOUTH AMERICA

Brazil
Alcan Aluminic do Brasil Lida.
Consorcio Aluminio do Maranhio
{Alumar Consortium) {10%)
Mineragio Rio do Norre S.A. (12.5%)
Petrocoque S.A, — Industria & Coméreio (25%)

AFRICA

Ghana
Ghana Bauxite Company Limited (45%)

Guinea
Compagnic des Bauxites de Guinée (16.8%)
Friguia (10.2%)

* This fist names only the principal businesses of the
Alcasr Gronp. A romplete [ist is contained in the
Companys 10-K Report, available from Alcan’
beadguarters in Montreal,

EUROPE

France
Alcan France (Technal)

Germany
Alcan Deutschland GmbH
Aluminium Norf GmbH {50%;)

Ireland

Aughinish Alumina Limirted
Italy

Alcan Alluminio §.p.A.

Norway

Vigeland Metal Refinery A/S (50%)
Spain

Alcan Palco S.A.

Switzerland

Alcan Aluminium AG

Alcan Rorschach AG

United Kingdom
British Alcan Aluminium ple

PACIFIC

Australia
Alcan South Pacific Pry Led.
Quecensland Alumina Limited (21.4%)

China

Alcan Asia Limiced

Alcan Asia Pacific Limiced

Alcan Nikkei China Limited (72.3 %)?

Alcan Nikkei Korea Limited (72.3 %)?

Nonfemer International (China-Canada-Japan)
Aluminium Company Limited (35.2%)*

India
Indian Aluminium Company, Limired (34.6%)

Japan

Alcan Asia Limited (Tokyo Branch)

Nippon Light Mctal Company, Ltd. (NLM)
(45.6%)

Korea
Alcan Nikkei Korea Limited (Scoul Branch)

Malaysia

Alcan Nikkei Asia Company Led. (78.2%)!
Aluminium Company of Malaysia Berhad (46.3%)°
Alcom Nikkei Specialty Coarings Sdn Bhd (62.2%)

Thailand
Alcan Nikkei Siam Limiced {54.8%)°
Alcan Nikkei Thai Limired (60.7%)?

! Alean’s divect Interest iy 60%, the remaining interest is
held throwgh Nippon Lighe Metal Company, Lid. (NLM).

2 Afeani divect nserest 1s 49%, the remaining interest s
beld theough NLM.

S Interest beld throngh Alcan Nikker Asia Holdings Lid.,
which is 78.2% vwned by Afeas.

# tntevest held through Aluminium Company of Malaysia
Berkbad and Alvan Nikkei Asia Holdings Ltd.

Alcan Aluminium Limited

VISIT ALCAN'S
WEB SITE:
www.alcan.com

Furcher information
on Alcan and its
acuiviries is available
on Alcan's Warld
Wide Web sire

and contained in
various Company
publications. These
publications, such

as A Compitmeni io
Continued Envivon-
mental improversent,
pubished in 1996, are
available by writing
to the address shown

at upper left,

VERSION
FRANCAISE

Powr obienir la
version frangaisc de
ce rapport. veuillez
éerire aux Services
aux actonnaires dont
Tadresse figure dans le

coin supéricur gauche.

&

1his report was printed
sy L'tg{'m'b[t‘bﬂjl’d

inks and Is recyclable.
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